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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that on this 31st day of January 2018, I served a copy of the 

foregoing SUBSTITUTION OF ATTORNEYS upon each of the following persons via the 

Odyssey E-Filing System pursuant to NRCP 5(b)(2)(D) and EDCR 8.05: 

Mark Simons   msimons@rssblaw.com 

Dennis L. Kennedy  dkennedy@baileykennedy.com  

Bailey Kennedy, LLP  bkfederaldownloads@baileykennedy.com  

Joseph A. Liebman  jliebman@baileykennedy.com 

Andrew Leavitt   andrewleavitt@ymail.com  

Angela Westlake  awestlake@lionelsawyer.com  

Brandon McDonald  brandon@mcdonaldlawyers.com  

Bryan A. Lindsey   bryan@nvfirm.com  

Charles Barnabi   cj@mcdonaldlawyers.com  

Christy Cahall   christy@nvfirm.com  

Jodi Alhasan    jalhasan@rbsllaw.com  

Lettie Herrera   lettie.herrera@andrewleavittlaw.com  

Rob Hernquist   rhernquist@lionelsawyer.com  

Samuel A. Schwartz.  sam@nvfirm.com  

Samuel Lionel   slionel@fclaw.com  

Therese M. Shanks  tshanks@rbsllaw.com  

CJ Barnabi   cj@cohenjohnson.com  

H S Johnson   calendar@cohenjohnson.com  

Erica Rosenberry  erosenberry@fclaw.com 

 

Dated this 31st day of January 2018. 

 
  
      /s/ CJ Barnabi_____________________________ 

         An employee of Cohen Johnson Parker Edwards 
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MSJ
Samuel S. Lionel, Esq. (Bar No. 1766)
Brenoch Wirthlin, Esq. (Bar No. 10282)
FENNEMORE CRAIG, P.C.
300 S. Fourth Street, Suite 1400
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Tel.: (702) 692-8000
Fax: (702) 692-8099
Email: slionel@fclaw.com
Attorneys for Sigmund Rogich
ønd Imitations, LLC

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CARLOS A. HUERTA, ffi individual;
CARLOS A. HUERTA as Trustee of THE
ALEXANDER CHzuSTOPHER TRUST, a
Trust established in Nevada as assignee of
interests of GO GLOBAL,INC., aNevada
corporation; NANYAH VEGAS, LLC, A
Nevada limited liability company,

Plaintiffs,

SIG ROGICH aka SIGMUND ROGICH as
Trustee of The Rogich Family Irrevocable
Trust; ELDORADO HILLS, LLC, a Nevada
limited liability company; DOES I-X; and/or
ROE CORPORATIONS I-X, inclusive,

Defendants

NANYAH VEGAS, LLC, aNevada limited
liability company,

Plaintiff,
V

TELD, LLC, aNevada limited liability
company; PETER ELIADES, individually and
as Trustee of the The Eliades Survivor Trust of
I 0/30/08; SIGMUND ROGICH, individually
and as Trustee of The Rogich Family
Irrevocable Trust; IMITATIONS, LLC, a
Nevada limited liability company; DOES I-X;
andlor ROE CORPORATIONS I-X, inclusive,

Defendants.

CASENO.: A-13-686303-C

DEPT. NO.: XXVII

MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT

DATE OF HEARING:

TIME OF HEARING:

CONSOLIDATED WITH:

CASE NO.: A-16-746239-C

Case Number: A-13-686303-C

Electronically Filed
2/23/2018 12:43 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT

Defendants SIGMUND ROGICH, individually and as Trustee of The Rogich Family

Irrevocable Trust and IMITATIONS, LLC ("Rogich Defendants") moves the Court for an Order

Granting Summary Judgment dismissing each of the nine claims brought by NANYAH VEGAS,

LLC ("Nanyah") on the ground that this action was not commenced within the time provided by

relevant statutes of limitations and other grounds.

The Motion is made and based on the Declaration of Samuel S. Lionel (Exhibit 1) Rogich

Defendants' Points and Authorities and the exhibits set forth in support of Rogich Defendants'

Points and Authorities.

DATED this Z 4 day of Feb ruary,2ll|

FENNEMORE CRAIG, P.C.

am S Esq. o.
Brenoch V/irthlin, Esq No. 10282)
300 South Fourth Street, Suite 1400
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Telephone : (7 02) 692-8000
Facsimile: (7 02) 692-8099
E-mail: slionel@.fclaw.com
Attorneys for Sigmund Rogich
and Imitations, LLC

By:
(NV
(Bar

2
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NOTICE OF MOTION

TO: ALL INTERESTED PARTIES; AND

TO: THEIR ATTORNEYS

Please take notice that the undersigned will bring the above MOTION FOR SUMMARY

JUDGMENT on for hearing before this Court at _ on

a.m. or as soon as counsel can be heard.

DATED this 7 3 day of February,2018

FENNEMORE CRAIG, P.C.

2018 at

Esq. BarNo. 1766)
No. 10282)Brenoch Wirthlin, Esq.

300 South Fourth Street, Suite 1400
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Telephone : (7 02) 692-8000
Facsimile: (7 02) 692-8099
E-mail: slionel@fclaw.com
Attorneys for Sigmund Rogich
and Imitations, LLC

I. PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This action is a consolidated proceeding of two actions. The first action (Case No. A-13-

686303-C), which coÍrmenced on July 31,2013, contains 4 causes of action (ooclaims"), including

one claim for unjust enrichment brought on behalf of Nanyah.l This action, which commenced

on November 4,2016, alleges nine Nanyah claims against six other Defendants.

This Motion for Summary Judgment is based primarily on relevant Statutes of Limitations

which provide for actions to be brought within periods of three, four and six years. It is Rogich

Defendants' position that Nanyah's claims were not brought until eight years after they had

accrued. Therefore summary judgment should be granted, dismissing each of the nine claims.

Rogich Defendants' Motion will also consider Nanyah's claims on substantive grounds.

Yoav Harlap, an Israeli, is the Manager of Nanyah. See Yoav Harlap's Deposition from

I There is misjoinder of causes of action in the first action.

J

28 March 10:00 
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October Il,2017 attached as Exhibit 3, at 50: 16-20. Nanyah has never had any employees, offrce

or bank accounts. Exhibit 3, at 5I:10-16. He is the sole investor in Nanyah. Exhibit 3, at 56:19-

24. He is a sophisticated investor. Exhibit 3, at 56;15-18. He has investments all over the world.

Exhibit 3, at 53:18-20. He has "so many investments I do not look at all these papers." Exhibit 3,

at 5219-20. He is pitched deals several times a week, all year long. When he was given a

investment pitch in Israel in2007 by Carlos Huerta ("Huerta") to invest, it was just another pitch.

Exhibit 3, at 6l:4-6.

II. MATERIAL FACTS PURSUANT TO NRCP 56(c)

1. Plaintiffls First Claim for Breach of Contract was filed more than six years after it

accrued.

2. Plaintiffls Second Claim for Breach of the Implied Covenant of Good Faith and Fair

Dealing, Contractual was filed more than four years after it accrued.

3. PlaintifPs Third Claim for Breach of the Implied Covenant of Good Faith and Fair

Dealing, Tortious was filed more than four years after it accrued and Nanyah does not

have the requisite fiduciary relationship.

4. Plaintiff s Fourth Claim for Intentional Interference with Contract was filed more than

three years after it accrued.

5. Plaintiffs Fifth Claim for Constructive Trust was filed more than four years after it

accrued and Nanyah does not have the confidential relationship required.

6. Plaintiff s Sixth Claim for Conspiracy was filed more than four years after it accrued

and there is no evidence that the Defendants agreed by concerted action to accomplish

an unlawful object for the purpose of harming Nanyah.

7. Plaintiffls Seventh Claim for Fraudulent Transfer was filed more than four years after

it accrued and there is no evidence proving that the transfer was made with the actual

intent to hinder, delay or defraud Nanyah.

8. Plaintiffls Eighth Claim for Declaratory Relief, based on a contract, is subject to a six

year limitation period. Nanyah's Eighth Claim was filed more than six years after it

accrued and does not set forth a current judicial controversy.

9. Plaintiff s Ninth Claim for Specific Performance was filed more than six years after it

4
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accnred and there is no provision in any agreement which provides for Nanyah to have

a membership interest in Eldorado.

III. THE PURCHASE AGREEMENT

In 2008, the Rogich Family Irrevocable Trust ("Rogich Trust), Huerta and his wholly

owned Go Global, Inc. ("Go Global") were equal owners of Eldorado Hills, LLC ("Eldorado"), a

company which owned approximately 160 acres of real property in Clark County, Nevada.2 In a

Purchase Agreement, effective October 30, 2008 ("Purchase Agreement" or "Exhibit2"), Huerta

and Go Global agreed to sell their interest to the Rogich Trust. See Purchase Agreement attached

as Exhibit 2.

Exhibit 2 provides that the membership interest of the Seller, "as well as the ownership

interest of the Buyer, may be subject to certain potential claims of those entities set forth and

attached hereto in Exhibit 'A' and incorporated herein by this reference" ("Potential Claimants").

Exhibit A to the Purchase Agreement provides as follows:

POTENTIAL CLAIMANTS
1. Eddyline Investments, LLC (potential investor or debtor) $ 50,000.00
2. Ray Family Trust (potential investor or debtor) $ 285,561.60
3. Nanyah Vegas, LLC (through CanaMex Nevada, LLC) $1,500,000.00
4. Antonio Nevada, LLClJacob Feingold $3,360,000.00

Also effective October 30, 2008, are the Membership Interest Purchase Agreement ("Teld

Agreement") attached as Exhibit 4, the Membership Interest Purchase Agreement ("Flangas

Agreement") attached as Exhibit 5, and the Amended and Restated Operating Agreement of

Eldorado Hills, LLC ("Eldorado Operating Agreement") attached as Exhibit 6. The Membership

Interest Assignment Agreement dated January 1,2012, is attached as Exhibit 7.

W. STATUTES OF LIMITATIONS

In Peterson v. Bruen, 106 Nev. 271,273,792P.2d 18, 19 (1990), the Court held:

"In resolving the issue before us, it is necessary to consider the purposes
served by statutes of limitation. Justice Holmes succinctly stated that the
primary purpose of such statutes is to "[prevent] surprises through the
revival of claims that have been allowed to slumber until evidence has
been lost, memories have faded, and witnesses have disappeared."
Telegraphers v. Ry. Express Agency,321 U.S. 342, 348-349, 64 S.Ct.
582,586,88 L.Ed. 768 (1944)."

2 There was a small minority ownership in Eldorado.

5
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In Nevada State Bank v. Jamison Family Partnership, 106 Nev. 792,798,801 P.2d 1377,

1381 (1990), the Court held:

"...statutes of limitation embody important public policy considerations
in that they stimulate activity, punish negligence, and promote repose by
giving security and stability to human affairs. Thus, statutes of limitation
rest upon reasons of sound public policy in that they tend to promote the
peace and welfare of society, safeguard against fraud and oppression, and
compel the settlement of claims within a reasonable period after their
origin and while the evidence remains fresh in the memory of the
witnesses."

Both quotations are applicable to Nanyah's stale claims. Yoav Harlap testified:

ooA. I don't remember what happened in 2006 or '7...or '8."
Exhibit 3, at lll10-12.

"Q. Why did you wait so long to sue?
MR. SIMONS: Which time?
A. What do you mean by 'so long'? I think I am suing within the time frame that I'm

permitted to. Why is it too long?

a. Is that your reason?
A. My reasons are to be kept between me and my attorney. This is privileged

information.

a. Is that the only answer you can give me?
A. I think so."
Exhibit 3, at 92:25-93: 10.

ARGUMENT

A. THE PURCHASE AGREEMENT (EXHIBIT 2) AND NANYAH

Mr. Harlap was a difficult deposition witness. He frequently answered that his lawyer

spoke for him or that the question involved a legal issue and he was not competent to respond.

Some examples from Mr. Harlap's deposition testimony are as follows:

"Q. So you assumed that at the time?
A. Perhaps I assumed at the time. Perhaps not. I don't know. I don't remember what

happened in2006 or '7.
a. You don't remember?
A. Or'8. Are we between questions?"
Exhibit 3, at Il1:8-13.

6
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"4. You're relating, again, to an agreement, and I'm not going to answer you in
regarding to the agreement whether it's establishing my rights. But my rights are
established, to the best of my understanding, based on the position of my
attorney."

Exhibit 3, at 27 :22-28:1.

ooA. The answer is that, according to my lawyer, they have failed in this respect, and so
I do."

Exhibit 3, at 140:22-24.

"4. I rely on that and on the explanation of my legal counsel..."
Exhibit 3, at 13216-17.

"4. ...I have no way of saying what I understand from the Hebrew translation of what
is written here to the legal meaning of it."

Exhibit 3, at 130:19-21.

"Q. What's the basis for your claim against Mr. Rogich?
MR. SIMONS: Asked and answered.
BY MR. LIONEL:
a. Answer the question.
A. Asked and answered."
Exhibit -1, at 85:3-8.

ooQ. And you have no recollection back in 2008 of seeing Exhibit 2?
A. I might have, I might have not. I don't recall. This is almost ten years back."
Exhibit 3, at 189:15-18.

While Mr. Harlap was generally not forthcoming in his deposition, when the question

concerned his alleged rights under the Purchase Agreement or his being a Potential Claimant, his

answers were clearly more assured. See the following examples:

"Q. Are you familiar with the purchase agreement?
A. Which purchase agreement?

a. In this case. The purchase agreement whereby Mr. Huerta got out of Eldorado.
A. If I'm not mistaken, this is the purchase agreement that says that - that

acknowledges the potential claims of Nanyah Vegas through $1.5 million. If this
is the document you refer to, then yes."

Exhibit 3, at 16:17 -17 :1.

Let the record show the witness is looking at Exhibit 2."

That is a2008 document. Did you see it in 2008?
I do not know.
You don't know. You don't know or you don't remember?
I don't remember.

o'Q

"Q
A.
a.
A.

7
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But you don't know?
I might have.
You might have. Okay.
I might have, because I do remember vividly that Carlos have explained to me, if
I'm not mistaken, over the phone, that my rights in the Eldorado Hills are secured
and that the buyer of Eldorado Hills from him has taken the commitment to pay me
or register my rights to pay me back my investment in Eldorado Hills.
When did Carlos tell you that?
This was at the time when he explained to me that he has his own issues. He had
to sell and that my rights remained there. But this is many years ago, so it's the
best of my recollection from, you know, the telephone conversation that was going
on.tt

Exhibit 3, at 17:6-7,l8:l-23

ooQ. Does Exhibit2have anything to do with your claim in this case?
A. Absolutely.
a. What does it have to do?

A. To the best of my understanding, according to Exhibit 2, it is clearly showing that
when Sig Rogich sold his rights in Eldorado Hills, he - sorry. Hold on. Sorry.

a. I don't want you to read from there. I want your recollection, please.
A. That when Carlos left Eldorado Hills and sold his part, whatever it is, his part, to

Sig Rogich Foundation, or whatever it's called, the foundation took upon itself the
commitment and acknowledged the factfhat Nanyah Vegas had a claim for 1.5

million in equity of Eldorado Hills..."
Exhibit 3 , at 24:8-24:ll , 25:8-25:19 .

"Q. Do you know any particular paperwork?
A. I remember number 2,Exhibit2.
a. That's the purchase agreement?
A. That's a purchase agreement. I remember this one for sure, which acknowledges,

to the best of my understanding and to my attorney's understanding, my rights to
be a claimant in regards to Eldorado Hills."

Exhibít 3, at 7 0:23 -7 I :5.

"Q. Now, you say the Rogich Trust interest was subject to Nanyah's ownership interest
in Eldorado. Would you explain that, if you can?

A. I can explain it as per Exhibit 2. Exhibit 2 says that I am a potential claimant, and
as far as I understand, even that agreement alone states my interest - Nanyah's
ownership interest."

Exhibit 3, at 163:9-15.

The foregoing demonstrates that Mr. Harlap was not a forthcoming witness except when

he felt it served his interest in connection with Exhibit 2 or his being a Potential Claimant was

considered.

a.
A.
a.
A.

a
A

8
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B. EXCEPT FOR NANYAH'S SEVENTH CLAIM,

NANYAH'S CLAIMS ACCRUED ON OCTOBER 30,2008

A statute of limitations prohibits a suit "after a period of time that follows the accrual of

the cause of action." FDIC v. Rhodes, 130 Nev. Adv. Op. 88,336 P.3d 961, 965 (2014). Such

limitation period is meant to provide a concrete time frame within which a plaintiff must file a

law suit and after which a defendant is afforded a level of security. v. State

Dep't of Tax" 132 Nev. Adv. Op.4,336 P.3d 699,706 (2016); Winn v. Sunrise Hosp. & Medical

Center, 128 Nev. 246,256,277 P.3d458,465 (2012).

In determining whether a statute of limitations has run against an action, the time must be

computed from the day the claim accrued. NRS 11.010; Dredge Comoration v. Wells Cargo.

Inc., 80 Nev. 99, I02,389 P.2d394,396 (1964). A claim accrues when a suit may be maintained

thereon. State ex rel. Deot. of Transn. v. Public Employees' Retirement System of Nevada. 120

Nev. 19, 22, 83 P.3d 815, 817 (2004); Clark v. Robison, 113 Nev. 949,951,944 P.2d 788,789

(1977). Nanyah's present action can be maintained. It could have been maintained in 2008 after

the date of the Purchase Agreement - October 30, 2008, and any of Nanyah' s present claims

could have been maintained thereafter if the applicable statute of limitations had not run.

Harlap's deposition shows his familiarity with Exhibit 2 since its execution and that his

rights flow from Exhibit 2. Nanyah's lawyer volunteered during Harlap's deposition the

importance of Exhibit 2 to Nanyah: "MR. SIMONS: When we went over the agreements. He

said Exhibit2. He told you that earlier. You went through this earlier today. He says, look, my

interest is right there." Exhibit 3, at 192:15-18.

All of Nanyah's claims allegedly arise from the Purchase Agreement (Exhibit 2), and the

Teld Agreement and Flangas Agreement, which cross reference each other and are effective

October 30, 2008. See Exhibit 2 at Para. 4; Exhibits 4 and 5 at Para. G.3 Even the Eldorado

Operating Agreement was effective October 30, 2008. See Exhibft ó. Without Exhibits 2, 4, and

5 there would be no claims. Each claim alleges or incorporates Exhibits 2, 4, 5 and 6.

3 At hir deposition, Harlap was asked about the Teld Agreement and the Flangas Agreement. He
responded: "Personally, I had no dealings with it beyond the fact that they, to my understanding,
purchased some rights in Eldorado Hills to which I am a potential claimant to." Exhibit 3, at
32:8-ll.

9
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Exhibit A to Exhibit 2 shows Nanyah as a Potential Claimant and Harlap, at his

deposition, contended that it showed his interest in Eldorado:

"4. My interest in Eldorado Hills, as also mentioned in Exhibit 2...sees me as a
potential claimant the way it is referred to in that paper, specific paper."

Exhibit 3, at87 6-9.

o'4. I think that Exhibit 2...is saying explicitly that L..have membership rights or that
there should be potential claims or membership rights..."

Exhibit 3, at 157:13-19.

"4. I can explain it as per Exhibit 2. Exhibit 2 says that I am a potential claimant, and
as far as I understand, even that agreement alone states my interest-Nanyah's
ownership interest."

Exhibit 3, at 163:12-15.

"Q. But do you remember the purchase agreement of 2008 and what it said about your
rights?

A. As I told you, I remember that there was, and I do not remember from when I
remember.

a. But Carlos told you about that agreement, didn't he?
A. He may have. He may have not. I assume he has."
Exhibit 3,af 1209-16.

Except for Nanyah's seventh claim for alleged fraudulent transfer, all of Nanyah's claims

are based on Exhibit 2 and the other October 30, 2008 agreements. Even the alleged tort claims

of Intentional Interference with Contract and Concert of Action are based on those agreements.

Nanyah alleges that in entering into the Purchase Agreement, the Rogich Trust agreed in

Exhibit A - Potential Claimants to be fully responsible for repaying Nanyah's investment in

Eldorado, and confirming Nanyah's membership interest in Eldorado. Complaint at Para. 25,26.

Nanyah also alleged that o'as of approximately the end of 2008" the Rogich Trust was subject to

Nanyah's interest claim and/or investment." Complaint at Para. 68. Those allegations show that

Nanyah sued the Rogich Trust on the basis that it was indebted to it based on Exhibit 2.

Nanyah alleged the Rogich Trust breached Exhibit 2by failingto convert its interest into a

non interest bearing debt. Complaint atPara.92(b).

'oQ. The failure to convert was done at that time?
A. No. The failure to convert was done probably way before that. Whether it was

2008 or just after what Exhibit 2 said they should have done.
a. It could have been 2008?
A. Could have been."
Exhibit 3, at 132:24-133:5.
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Nanyah must have been aware that the Purchase Agreement provided that "time is of the

essence of this Agreement and all of its provisions." That provision is the last sentence of

Exhibits 2, 4 and 5. Paragraph 37 of the Complaint alleges that "the Purchase Agreement also

provided that 'time is of the essence' regarding compliance with the agreement's provisions."

In Soper v. Means, I 1 I Nev. 1290, 1295, 903 P.2d 222,224 (1995), in 1975, plaintiff had

a loosely prepared agreement to form a corporation and build a mobile home park on Soper's

land. No time for performance was specified and there were mrmerous disagreements. Soper did

not supply electricity as he promised, nor did he transfer the land. Their last conversation was in

1977 . Means sued Soper nine years later, on January 28, 1986, to recover what he had spent in

doing the work on the project. The jury found for Means, but the court reversed on the ground

that the six year contract statute of limitations had run because Mean's cause of action accrued

when he unilaterally closed out a corporate bank account on January 2,1980.

In ofT v. Judicial Dist. C 133 Nev. Adv. Op.

70 (2017), the Court held that "in a discovery based cause of action, a plaintiff must use due

diligence in determining the existence of a cause of action." In Bemis v. Estate of Bemis, 114

Nev. 1021, 1025,967 P.2d 437,440 (1998), the Court held that "We have previously applied the

discovery rule to contract actions, holding that an action for breach of contract accrues as soon as

the plaintiff lcnows or should lcnow of facts constituting a breach." Soper v. Means, 111 Nev.

1290, t294,903 P.2d222,224 (1995)

Nanyah knew that pursuant to Exhibit 2, the Rogich Trust had agreed to repay Nanyah its

investment and to confirm Nanyah's membership in Eldorado. Just as Means did not sue Soper

for approximately nine years after their last conversation, Nanyah did not sue for more than eight

years after Exhibit 2 was executed. Except for Nanyah's fraudulent transfer claims based on

2012 events, there is nothing alleged in Nanyah's Complaint based on conduct or events after

October 30, 2008. During that period, Nanyah knew that Rogich Trust did not repay the

investment or confirm its membership in Eldorado. As in Soper, the statute of limitations was

,running.

Nanyah is suing Rogich Defendants based on accrued claims. If the claims were not

accrued there is no basis for Nanyah's claims and except for the seventh claim of alleged
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fraudulent transfer, Nanyah's claims should be dismissed for that reason.

Nanyah was shown as a Potential Claimant in Exhibit 2 dated October 30, 2008. See

Exhibit 2. Being a 'Potential Claimant' on that date fully supports October 30, 2008 as the

accrual date for Nanyah's claims. Furthermore, because of Nanyah's knowledge of Exhibit2 and

his being a Potential Claimant, he had facts, as of October 30, 2008, that "would lead an ordinary

prudent person to investigate the matter further." It had "inquiry notice" which was also the

accrual date. Such facts do not need to pertain to precise legal theories Nanyah would ultimately

pursue. 'Winn v. Sunrise Hosp. & Medical Center, 128 Nev. 246, 252,277 P .3d 458, 462 (2012);

Massey v. Litton, 99 Nev. 723,728,669 P.2d248,251(1983). In Beazer Homes Nevada. Inc. v.

Eighth Judicial Dist. Court ex rel. County of Clark, 120 Nev. 575, 585,97 P.3d 1132, ll38
(2004), the Court recognized that a cause of action accrued and the statute of limitations began to

run when a litigant discovers, or reasonably should have discovered, facts giving rise to an action.

Peterson v. Bruen, 106 Nev. 271,274,792 P.2d 18,20 (1990); Bemis v. Estate of Bemis, 114

Nev. 1021, 1025,967 P.2d 437, 440 (1998). Clearly Harlap recognized he had accrued claims.

He testified he had potential claims against "Sig Rogich, his family foundation, to the best of my

understanding, Teld, which is Eliades and any other person or entity...that is mentioned in my

claim." Exhibit 3, at83:19-25.

Mr. Harlap knew in 2008 that Exhibit2had been breached. Clearly the accrual date for

Nanyah's claims was October 30, 2008. Furtherr,nore, Nanyah was a Potential Claimant under the

Purchase Agreement and had inquiry notice atthattime that required it to investigate what claims

it had.

C. NANYAH'S CLAIMS ARE BARRED BY THE STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS

The following is information concerning the application of Nevada Statutes of

Limitations, and other facts with respect to Nanyah's claims.

FIRST CLAIM

Nanyah's First Claim is a claim for breach of contract. The applicable statute of

limitations is NRS 11.190(lxb) which requires an action to be brought within 6 years from its

accrual. As the accrual date is October 30, 2008 and the action was commenced on November 4,

2016, the claim is barred by NRS 11.190 (1Xb) and should be dismissed.
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SECOND CLAIM

Nanyah's Second Claim is an alleged breach of the covenant of good faith and fair dealing

arising from the agreements alleged in the First Claim. The alleged breaches are the same as

those alleged in the First Claim. The applicable statute of limitations is NRS 11.220 which

requires an action to be commenced within 4 years of its accrual. Nanyah's Second Claim was

brought 4 years after its accrual and should be dismissed.

THIRD CLAIM

Nanyah's Third Claim is a tortious version of its Second Claim. Like the Second Claim,

the 4 year limitation applies and the Claim is barred by NRS 11.220 because it was filed more

than 4 years after its accrual and should be dismissed.

Furthermore, in Insurance Co. of the V/est v. Gibson Tile Co.. Inc., 122 Nev. 455,461,

134 P.3d 698,702 (2006), the Supreme Court stated:

"Although every contract contains an implied covenant of good faith
and fair dealing, an action in tort for breach of the covenant arises only
'in rare and exceptional cases' when there is a special relationship
between the victim and tort feasor. A special relationship is
'characterized by elements of public interest, adhesion and fiduciary
responsibility. "'

In Greaf Ameri¡:qn Tns Cn r¡ Generql Rrrilrlers Inc 113 Nev. 346,354,934 P.2d 257,

283 (1997), the Court held that 'othe tort action for breach of an implied covenant of good faith

and fair dealing requires a special element of reliance or fiduciary duty, A. C. Shaw Const.. Inc.

v. Washoe County, 105 Nev. 913, 915, 784 P.2d 9, 10 (1989) and is limited to 'rare and

exceptional cases,"' K Mart Corp. v. Ponsock, 103 Nev. 39,49,732P.2d 1364, 1370 (1987).

Nanyah is aware of those holdings and has alleged that "These defendant's shared a

special, fiduciary and/or confidential relationship with Nanyah." Complaint at Para. 103.

However, Mr. Harlap testified that he did know the defendants and had nothing to do with them.

Exhibit 3 at 14l 13-14213.

Thus, because this is not an exceptional case and because Nanyah did not have the

requisite special relationship, Nanyah's Third Claim should be dismissed.
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FOURTH CLAIM

Nanyah's Fourth Claim is for Intentional Interference with Contract. Nanyah alleges that

Sigmund Rogich, Teld, Peter Eliades and the Eliades Trust'operformed intentional acts intended

or designed to disrupt Nanyah's contractual rights arising out of these contracts." Complaint at

Para.ll2.

In 2009, the Nevada Supreme Court ruled that claims for intentional interference with

contract are claims for injury to personal property and subject to a three year statute of

limitations. Stalk v. Mushkin, 125 Nev. 21,26,27,199 P.3d 838, 841 (2009)

'oBecause we have determined that business interests are personal
property, we conclude that intentional interference with these business
interests are actions for taking personal property and not actions for
injuries to a person. See Clark, 181 N.V/. 2d at216 (concludingthat a
claim for interference in business relationships was 'fundamentally
proprietary in character although incidental injuries may have been of a
different nature."). Thus, we conclude that intentional interference with
business interests are subject to the three-year statute of limitations set
forth in NRS 11.190 (3)(c)."

Accordingly, because the Fourth Claim was filed 8 years after it accrued, it is barred by

the 3 year statute of limitations NRS 11.190(3)(c). Nanyah's Fourth Claim should be dismissed.

FIFTH CLAIM

Nanyah's Fifth Claim is for Constructive Trust. It alleges that the Eliades Trust assisted

the Rogich Trust in transferring its Eldorado membership to the Eliades Trust for the purpose of

not honoring obligations owed to Nanyah and that the Court should impose a constructive trust

for all profits improperly acquired. There is no statute of limitations with respect to a

constructive trust. Thus the 4 year provision of NRS 11.220 is applicable. As Nanyah's

constructive trust claim was filed in November 2016, more than 4 years after its accrual on

October 30,2008, it is baned by NRS 11.220 and should be dismissed.

Furthermore, "imposition of a constructive trust requires: '[that] a confidential

relationship exists between the parties..." Waldman v. Maini, 124 Nev. II2l, 1131, 195 P.3d

850,857 (2008); Lockenv. Locken,98 Nev. 369,372,650P.2d 803,805 (1982). Mr. Harlap

testified there was no relationship between Nanyah or any of the defendants. Exhibit 3 at 14l:16-

148:6. Thus, because there was no confidential relationship between Nanyah and the Eliades

Trust or Peter Eliades, Nanyah's Fifth Claim should be dismissed.



1

2

J

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

t2

13

t4

15

T6

l7

18

t9

20

2l

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

FENNEMORE CRAIG

l5

SIXTH CLAIM

Nanyah's Sixth Claim against all Defendants is labelled "conspiracy." It alleges that

"Defendants, by acting in consort, intended to accomplish an unlawful objective in deceiving and

depriving Nanyah from its expectations and financial benefits in being a member of Eldorado"

Emphasis added, Complaint atPara. l2I. Actually, acting in concert resembles the tort of civil

conspiracy. Dow Chemical Co. v. Mahlum, 114 Nev.1468, 1488,970P.2d98, lI2 (1998).

There is no statute of limitations for acting in concert or civil conspiracy and the four year statute

for actions not provided for, NRS 1 1.220 is applicable. As the claim was not filed within four

years after its accrual, it is barred by the statute of limitations and should be dismissed.

Both the tort of concert of action and civil conspiracy require a plaintiff to prove an

agreement between the tort feasors showing their intent to accomplish an unlawful objective for

the purpose of harming Nanyah. Id at 1489, Eikelberger v. Tolotti, 96 Nev. 525,528,611P.2d

1086, 1088 (1980). Acting in concert requires that the conduct of each tort feasor be in itself

tortious. Dow Chemical Co. v. Mahlum, 114 Nev. 1468,1489,970P.2d98,II2 (1998). 'oParties

are acting in concert when they act in accordance with an agreement to act in a particular line of

conduct or to accomplish a particular result. The agreement need not be expressed in words and

may be implied and understood to exist from the conduct itself. Whenever two or more persons

commit tortious acts in concert, each becomes subject to liability for the acts of each other, as

well as for his own acts." Restatement (Second) of Torts $876 (1979).

Interrogatory No. 26 of Defendants' Interrogatories to Nanyah was directed to Nanyah's

acting in concert allegation. Interrogatory No. 26 reads: "Paragraph 121 of the Complaint alleges

that defendants oacting in concert, intended to accomplish an unlawful objective in deceiving and

depriving Nanyah from its expectations and financial benefits in being a member of Eldorado.'

V/hich defendants acted in concert? What did each do and when did they do it?"

Nanyah's response is 16 pages long and consists of conclusions and hearsay. Nothing in

the response shows that any Defendant committed a tortious act. See Nanyah's Response to

Interrogatory No. 26 afiached as Exhibit 8. There is no evidence that the Defendants agreed by

concerted action that they intended to accomplish an unlawful object for the purposs of harming

Nanyah. Accordingly, there is no tort of concerted action and the Sixth Claim should be
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dismissed.

SEVENTH CLAIM

Nanyah's Seventh Claim alleges the Rogich Trust transferred its membership interest in

Eldorado to the Eliades Trust with actual intent to hinder, delay or defraud Nanyah of its interest

in Eldorado. Complaint atPara. 124-126. The Complaint alleges, upon information and belief,

that "on or about August or September of 2012, Teld and Rogich Trust entered into a new

agreement whereby Rogich Trust agreed to forfeit its 40o/o membership interest in Eldorado

allegedly in exchange for the sum of $682,080, to the Eliades Trust. Nanyah is informed and

believes those documents were backdated to January l, 2012, for some reason that is yet

unknown to Nanyah." Complaint atPara.70.a

The Membership Interest Assignment Agreement dated January 1,2012, is not an exhibit

to the Complaint. It is Exhibit 7 to this Motion. It provides in Paragraph 1 that: "Rogich hereby

transfers and conveys the Membership Interest including all of his rights, title and interest of

whatever kind or nature in the Membership Interest to Eliades, and Eliades hereby acquires the

Membership Interest from Rogich, upon receipt of the Consideration (as defined here below) at

closing." Exhibit 7 provides in paragraph 4 that the Closing "shall be consummated upon the

execution of this Agreement, the payment of consideration as herein stated and the delivery of a

Satisfaction of Promissory Note and release of security to Teld." The consideration of $682,080

from Peter Eliades to Rogich (a check dated August 16,2012) and the Satisfaction of Promissory

Note and Release of Security are attachedas Exhibits 9 and 10.

Mr. Harlap testified he did not know when the interest was transferred nor when he found

out about it. Exhibit 3, at 179:1 1- 181 :2.

NRS 112.230(l)(a) provides as follows:

"1. A claim for relief with respect to a fraudulent transfer or
obligation under this chapter is extinguished unless action is
brought:

(a) Under paragraph (a) of subsection 1 of NRS 112.180, within 4
years after the transfer was made or the obligation was incurred
or, if later, within I year after the transfer or obligation was or
could reasonably have been discovered by the claimant."

a Exhibits 2, 4, 5 and 6 contain the effective date of October 30, 2008. It is not unusual when a
party sells or transfers an interest to make the agreement effective as of an earlier date, like
January 1, fortax and otherpulposes.
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NRS 112.230(l)(a) provides for claim extinguishment unless the action is brought within

4 years after the transfer was made or the obligation was incurred. According to the Complaint

and the Membership Interest Assignment Agreement between the Rogich Trust and the Eliades

Survivor Trust (Exhibit D the transfer occurred no later than September 2012. As this action was

not commenced until November 4,2016, it was more than 4 years after the transfer.

The second clause of 112.230(1Xa) provides an additional period of I year, if, within that

1 year, the transfer or obligation was or could reasonably have been discovered by the claimant.

Nanyah admits it leamed of the transfer in2012. Complaint at Para. 83. Thus, Nanyah's Seventh

Claim for fraudulent transfer was extinguished because the action was not brought within 4 years

after the transfer was made or the obligation was incurred, and the additional one year period is

inapplicable. Therefore the claim should be dismissed.

Nanyah's Seventh Claim alleges the Rogich Trust's transfer to the Eliades Trust was made

with the actual intent to hinder, delay or defraud Nanyah. NRS 112.180 sets forth l l factors that

could be considered in determining actual intent to hinder, delay or defraud. See In Re Gillissie,

215 B.R. 370,374,375 U.S. Bank. Court, N.D. Ill, Eastern Division (1997). Attached as Exhibit

11 is the Declaration of Defendant Sigmund Rogich ("Rogich Declaration") in which he,

individually, and as 'l'rustee of the Rogich Trust, responds to the 11 fäctors. Each factor is

responded to positively and demonstrates that Mr. Rogich had no improper intent with respect to

the transfer. See Exhibit I I.

Nanyah has the burden of proving that the Rogich Trust had a specific intent to hinder,

delay or defraud in transferring his Eldorado interest to the Eliades Survivor Trust. ld at 375;

Lindholm v. Holtz, 581 N.E.2d 860, 863 (1998). The Rogich Declaration states that the transfer

of the 40o/o membership interest from the Rogich Trust to the Eliades Survivor Trust was made in

good faith and that he had no intent to hinder, delay or defraud Nanyah or anyone else.

There does not appear to be any evidence whatsoever to prove Nanyah's allegation that

the transfer was made with the actual intent to hinder, delay or defraud Nanyah. Accordingly,

Nanyah's Seventh Claim should be dismissed.
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EIGHTH CLAIM

Nanyah's Eighth Claim is a claim for Declaratory Relief under NRS 30.030 and 30.040

regarding Nanyah's rights and obligations with respect to its alleged investment into Eldorado.

There is no statute of limitations, but because it concerns a contract it is therefore governed by

NRS 11.190(1Xb), the six year statute of limitations applicable to contracts. Because the claim

was not filed within six years after the accrual, it is barred by NRS I1.190(1Xb) and should be

dismissed.

Nanyah's claim alleges in Paragraph 132, an existing current controversy between Nanyah

and the Defendants. It does not allege what the current controversy is. The claim doesn't state

which of the six defendants is concerned with such unspecified controversy. In Paragraph 133 it

alleges that it is "entitled to seek" declaratory relief determining the amount of its membership

interest andlor the amounts owed to it "in the event a membership is not sought and/or obtained."

That is an unintelligent non request for declaratory relief.

Paragraph 135 is the only allegation that seeks declaratory relief and such relief is

obviously not obtainable. That paragraph seeks only a declaration of Nanyah's rights ooas

contained in the various agreements referenced herein." The right to declaratory relief does not

and is not intended to include the right to submit agreements to the Court with the request that the

court tell the plaintiff what its rights are under the agreements. That is not the required cunent

judicial controversy.

Nanyah's Eighth Claim makes no sense. It should be dismissed.

NINTH CLAIM

Nanyah's Ninth Claim is for Specific Performance of Agreements allegedly oovesting

Nanyah with a membership interest in Eldorado." As alleged contracts are involved, the six year

statute of limitations NRS 11.190(b) is the applicable statute. Because the action was not filed

within six years of its accrual, the claim is barred and should be dismissed.

Nanyah alleges oothe terms of the various contracts are clear, definite and certain."

Complaint at Para. 137. Nevada requires a specific performance claim to be supported by

contract terms that are definite and certain. Serpa v. Darling, 107 Nev. 299,305,8I0 P.2d778,

782 (1991), Mayfield v. Koroghli, 124 Nev. 343,351,189 P. 3d362,367 (2008).
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Not only does Nanyah not set forth any definite and certain provisions in the agreements

to support specific performance; there is no provision in any agreement providing for Nanyah to

have a membership interest in Eldorado. Moreover, Paragraph 47 of the Complaint alleges that

the membership agreements state that the "Rogich Trust is currently acquiring the ownership"

interest of Nanyah. That is totally inconsistent with any alleged claim that the contract definitely

provided clear, definite and certain terms for vesting Nanyah with an Eldorado interest.

Accordingly Nanyah's Ninth Claim should be dismissed.

V. CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing, the Rogich Defendants respectfully request that this Court enter

Summary Judgment dismissing Nanyah's nine claims.

DATED this day of February, 2018

FENNEMORE CRAIG, P.C.

By:
o.

Brenoch Wirthlin, Esq No. 10282)
300 South Fourth Street, Suite 1400
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Telephone : (7 02) 692-8000
Facsimile: (702) 692-8099
E-mail: slionel@fclaw.com
Attorneys for Sigmund Rogich
and Imitøtions, LLC
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that a copy of the MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT was

served upon the following person(s) either by electronic transmission through the Wiznet system

pursuant to NEFCR 9, NRCP 5(b) and EDCR 7.26 or by mailing a copy to their last known

address, first class mail, postage prepaid for non-registered users, on this Z!*du, of February,

2018 as follows:

Mark Simons, Esq.
6490 South McCarran Blvd.,#20
Reno, Nevada 89509
mark@mgsimonslaw.com
Attorneyfor Plaintiff Nanyah Vegas, LLC

Charles E. ("CJ") Barnabi, Jr.
COHEN JOHNSON PARKER EDWARDS
3758. Warm Springs Road, Suite 104
Las Vegas, NV 89119
cj@cohenjohnson.com
Attorneyþr Plaintffi Carlos Huerta
and Go Global, LL

Dennis Kennedy
Joseph Liebman
BAILEY.:. KENNEDY
8984 Spanish Ridge Avenue
Las Vegas, NV 89148
DKennedy@BaileyKennedy. com
Jliebman@B aileyKennedy. com
Attorneys for Defendants Pete Eliades,
Teld, LLC and Eldorado Hills, LLC

[x] Via E-service

[] Via U.S. Mail (Not registered with
CM/ECF Program)

[x] Via E-service

[] Via U.S. Mail (Not registered with
CM/ECF Program)

[x] Via E-service

[] Via U.S. Mail (Not registered with
CM/ECF Program)

Êr*"7M
An employed of Fennemore Cru{g,P.C.

Docket 79917   Document 2021-19847
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Defendants.

DECL
Samuel S. Lionel, Esq. (Bar No. 1766)
FENNEMORE CRATG, P.C.
300 S. Fourth Street, Suite 1400
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Tel.: (702) 692-8000
Fax: (702) 692-8099
Email: slionel@fclaw.com
Attorneys for Sigmund Rogich
and Imitations, LLC

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CARLOS A. HUERTA, ffi individual;
CARLOS A. HUERTA as Trustee of THE
ALEXANDER CHRISTOPHER TRUST, A

Trust established in Nevada as assignee of
interests of GO GLOBAL, INC., aNevada
corporation; NANYAH VEGAS, LLC, A
Nevada limited liability company,

Plaintiffs,

SIG ROGICH aka SIGMLIND ROGICH as
Trustee of The Rogich Family Irrevocable
Trust; ELDORADO HILLS, LLC, aNevada
limited liability company; DOES I-X; and/or
ROE CORPORATIONS I-X, inclusive,

Defendants.

NANYAH VEGAS, LLC, aNevada limited
liability company,

Plaintiff,
V

TELD, LLC, aNevada limited liability
company; PETER ELIADES, individually and
as Trustee of the The Eliades Survivor Trust of
1 0/30/08; SIGMUND ROGICH, individually
and as Trustee of The Rogich Family
Irrevocable Trust; IMITATIONS, LLC, a
Nevada limited liability company; DOES I-X;
and/or ROE CORPORATIONS I-X, inclusive,

CASENO.: A-13-686303-C

DEPT. NO.: XXVII

DECLARATION OF SAMUEL S. LIONEL

CONSOLIDATED WITH:

CASE NO.: A-16-746239-C
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DECLARATION OF' AMIIEL S. LIONEL

1. I, Samuel S. Lionel, am an attorney at law and duly licensed to practice in Nevada and I

submit this Declaration in support of Defendants The Rogich Family Irrevocable Trust

("Rogich Trust") and Imitations, LLC's Motion for Summary Judgment. I have personal

knowledge of the facts set forth in this Declaration and I am competent to testify to the

matters stated herein.

2. Attached as Exhibit 2 is a true and correct copy of the Purchase Agreement with the

effective date of October 30, 2008.

3. Attached as Exhibit 3 is a true and correct copy of the deposition of Yoav Harlap dated

October 1I,2017.

4. Attached as Exhibit 4 is a true and correct copy of the Membership Interest Purchase

Agreement ("Teld Agreement") with the effective date of October 30, 2008.

5. Attached as Exhibit 5 is a true and correct copy of the Membership Interest Purchase

Agreement ("Flangas Agreement") with the effective date of October 30, 2008.

6. Attached as Exhibit ó is a true and corect copy of the Amended and Restated Operating

Agreement of Eldorado Hills, LLC effective October 30, 2008.

7. Attached as Exhibit 7 is a true and correct copy of the Membership Interest Assignment

Agreement between the Rogich Trust and the Eliades Trust with the effective date of

January I,2012.

8. Attached as Exhibit I is a true and correct copy of Nanyah Vegas, LLC's Second

Amended Answer to Defendants' Interrogatory No. 26.

9. Attached as Exhibit 9 is a true and correct copy of the check from Peter Eliades to the

Rogich Trust in the amount of $682,080, dated August I0,2012 and identified as NAN

0226.

10. Attached as Exhibit I0 is a true and correct copy of the Satisfaction of Promissory Note

and Release of Security, dated January I,2012 and identified as NAN 0225.

1 1. Attache d as Exhibit I I is a true and correct copy of the Declaration of Sigmund Rogich,

dated February 22,2018.

2
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I, Samuel S. Lionel, declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

EXECUTED on February 79,2018.

S.

J
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oot0h0f,200tî, by rud auong úo olobul, lhv, ("oo olobhl"), ûartou I'lugrts t"cgrl0g") ("þell0/) rt¡td'l'ho

Rugich F¡mìly tr.avocthlc il"r¡vt (';truycrn') with runpcct lo t¡p t'pltçrting fhdtu Èfld' aln]$llslltflçq{:

h.ËCl'T$[8r

, À, , $ullur owny o Monburhlp lgcront ('t\'itrolbo$hl¡r tNw+f ) in lsJrlorndo Htll*' l'[C (lho

,,r;ûmpår,ryï uqurtl trr cr groûsr lhs$ ìhlrty'livtr pcrwnt (l Se/o) ur¡ct thioh ¡niy l¡e rn¡hlüh nr ßrd¡r"ntrru rurd

rrrrry -rurrr otro hrur.tlr¿rrrhs (4g.44"r) of rha .nil¡'.owno*ttp iü{0ro*1$ tn tho ünrupuny, 8r¡ah intororl, ru

rvu* .r* rlrç ow*crnhr¡r inturtltt .uncntry hold by riq¡yct, ri*ry'ro subjccr to con¡t" polr:tls'$lsl$N of thoso

o'trrrsr rr{ fbnh¡nir sttaphad buoto in &rhrbrt ,r¡r' R:nrinúorpórård hür('Í* byrils rofirürco (ItolcnuíÍl

clnlnrntlc,,), Buyorürt¿'lxlrto0cgptitrl¿¡rtrolrsldtttuwithSsfl$'¡¡teflrlrnc¿rothntfuoholü|fi¡t¡¡hsonfinr¡

or c.onvcrtt¡o n¡rtorlrrtrsot.lbrllrbççls1u Úuil$moôf*sthol'snld olai$¡t¡ttr Into'ntu'ûrtoralt bqtr¡'udabtior

ar nqulry puroonrngo k, bo dðtånmlnarlty ÍJuyor n{ìlr corrsultnücn rvlth l}ellrt us dotito¿ by $ollot' ù'lth t¡o

cnpitnl u¡¡llt fcrr nronfhty Plt)'rru$t1, nntl o illll¡{butÍOn ln rolpovl Uf tholr olrrlm¡ {n oflOunts *ofl tltg 6lts'

fhf rrl (l/,S orv¡¡qtuhlp lntorastJn llro ÇnrrrpnoS'rolclnod by Buyor'

B, $+¡cr iîssiros rj ru¡¡, qrid,ltuyor drrpl¡'et¡ to pruolurc" rtll ofðollqt'c Mornbcrrhþ ¡¡t*roll'

nrbjoot to rho Fotorlinl #lrhn¡nte oud purninot lo lhotørx of thi¡ ¡fsr0u¡tløt'

Ng!u, 1*îlppËFoltp, in.congldrtrrlo[ of rl¡c $tutupl ptarniro$, sovotrs¡tt$ turd ruptortnlìtllurut

hsrvtnrifler Crr$lôhctt, *nd suÞJæt m thc oouttiticrnr h*olntflqr nuf fcdlr, lt is ogrcod [$ I't¡flo|Sl

'$i.d.
rÞfiawrtunm.¡[

ïî'Ti ::fl}#,'! 1 ï#iïl/rï'{'i 
i i''"i I f, r}

',.'i,'l 
l' .: ìiuitc¡-l¿sl4AcìRlîi¿h'Llìl"l I"

-"u i',¡;årlii;,jt
i¡ i''!¡',i1.'r li
,1.' . ,f ,:,ri.,1
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Àgcauunt, $olltr wltl {'rttnsfür trnat gonvEy thr¡ Marnhotshlp hrtcro¡l tu Buycr; u¡rl lSnyor rvlll rroquirr thr

MerrrÞoghrp lnrorËft lln¡n Sollcr, u¡ion puynrtrnr ol'thu çon¡ld*rlrkrn ú$t fonh horsln üt Cloriru'

' å to,nsiderûrlon. fior rurtl ln.coúr¡idsnrtion ot' $cflø't un$sfl,r üf thü Mútnbffship Ïüt$Û3t
.,

hccnrnrta' Buyoi rgruco: 
û$ n,n,rnrcrestbo¡ttn*¿arlrrvtr', (a) I¡uyor slurll uwo Scller thu run o(ü2,?4?,??9.J0 ru non'lnløert bouln¡¡dt

lhmoforo, np iapilr¡l mflc for rnonttrly p{ymaüe, $tld r¡nourtl $¡ûif bo pnynblu to $urlir¡ ñçnt fi¡trlrc

dlxtdbutfonl orproq¿Þú{ (rrct of trnnlc/rlcht ow¿d ilÀytï'ôt¡r unt! to't llabilltio¡ ÛolÏ luqh prucauls' lf u¡y¡

diorriuüra¡t rô DuyÞr si thç rÊtô o,l iú,äû% of's,r*h pîolitü, rt¡, wlcn and lf rcr:olval by llu¡tr fto,m lhp

ÇompunY..i..
(ÐA¡üøIrcr.oongltlrrtlon,Fttl,or{(fË{rrtÞfndgmnlÚsollør8¡ínnttl¡ÖË,rtOûål

gu,trüûþ 1f Ssllcr t'orïho w{atlng Conrpeny foa¡¡ ln tho npproxfmalo ouncatþ outütü$dlng unoriut,r¡f
!a

t?l,170,??t.0t, urd thr{h¿r'0,&rr0u tü rtquü$ thËlurdÛrofcuCh lo$¡ to rtlo¡roSoilct ûrxn ruoh tut'trn(y

.(ujiilrln ouc ycul; ' ' :'

(c) Furthcrnor,6, ¡g or rqkí{u{odgrncnt oftho lbst thüt Cùrlor wlll m longor hc n nun¡ior of

the Co*p*rry ¿ltor &d ötoa-{ng, Sqycr sl$ll ¡fso dcfond narl ludaurl$ i:utor úom rnd agul$st poll'
I

Ck¡clug 0on¡p¡¡¡Y açtlvltíw

3, ttclonso oflnttrô$t. Ai Çlçrslng, upon ptrymonl ef{hd¡C'oÍsldorntlon nx¡ulrtd hcruundct, $0lloa

' rhnll rqloülu nnrl wlinryí*tr xny trtil ntj d¡lrl, tl¡lo rnd fnitlrtlrt whJch líall¡r npw htu'or tn¿yuvarb¿vo hu¿f

ln rl* Murnb*irrtrtp trr?crort und in rny orhti¡. lntøu,rt (uqdry or dcåt¡ ui,tto cotprny. llach $olla'

It¡rlhsrnom doue l6ntry prrxonrly rcolgn (or sonflffi¡s rqnlgnnti,on) llorn my uml ¿ll puiltlon¡ ln thü

Comprnyr*rtntif1ic4rrrnolragru.,crtrploywnndlnrnon¡ultnrlti Additionnll¡'$oll$docnhorcbyruhxuetltc

_t

:
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¡tt¿l ils tlt{:mbcrs' lmünågcr5 ¡¡d çfficcrs

for debf or cquíty repuyttartl'(ertcopt to thc ¡1¡14¡1 qf tlrc

or nlturç' inclurling without lítniçnlion n¡y clnirps

fot temuncrntlon relntivo tÕ pnst ssrvlccs n¡ sn offiòer'

,Õo¡rçitlsralioit r¿fttcnccd in Seclion 2 abovc) or

rnnitr gi;r, cinployco, consulinnt or o thenvisc'

4.Ropregcnt¡llonsofscllor,SubjccltounypolerltinlclaintsofllìcPotcnria|Clnimu¡tts,$cllcr

represenlsnnd rvarronl¡ lh¿tt (í) Sçtlcr i¡ tlroorvnor,beneficinltynn<lof,rÈÇord,of 
thc Mpmbgrlhlp lrrtcrcrt

x rJcscritrecl in Rccitnl ¿{ ¡bovc' tïee nncl atcnrof nll lions' clìcunìbttrlcest sccurily ngfcvñcnts' cquttles'

o¡rtlorrs, clRims, charges, and rcstriotions, rvhich orvnoiship lnlorc'sl iu not cvlclcn oed by ¡ rvl[ttc¡t

rhlp Lrtcrost i¡ validty i¡suctl ín tht nuno of $ellor' firlly

Mcmbcrship CuÈllioalo, (fl) ntl of thc Monrbors

'por¿ 

on¿ non.asroqsablc, (ir) se'cr hns firu porvur ro trnnsfer tho Msrnr¡ersbíp Intrrovt to Buysr witrrorr

"obtalhlng (tlc consett( or sPProvül of rny crthcr puruon 0f Bovonmontol outhorìty' (lv) $oìlor h¡s bean

ofrqrod coinprcto md unl¡rndarqd hccess lo ¡tr fînsn,lst rduords, buelnos¡ ruconru, ¡rnd bu'erncs¡ opo'sfl.nl

of thc comprnf, (v) tho dooísiån to rcrr tho Murnboruhrp Intorcsr on rrro tonns nn<J urncrrrrons of thrs

.ÅgrrlcmonLwcrcnägotratep 
by trrcpnrtiesulon cônsrdc*tJoaof tlro co¡roüncnltrûnEâotroff lobaontorcd

Into qrfl('ñg Buycr, company fltld hvÚ ne{v ittvcgtorà (rofcronccd bplow irt this scctlor¡ 4) nrrd solìor hol

heen prcviaed ¡* l¡rfonnarrån noccusnry to nrokc nn infon¡¿ir decrsf on rcgrrding tho uoooptanæ of ll:tt'

t¿rmshg¡cundtrunclhnvsorrghtilreadvlccofsr¡chcol¡nscforlnv$.tmcnto<Jvi¡orsssSollffdaorÍsd

apprupritrc, of olecrccl noi ro do ¡o onrt (vl) oxccpt ûs othcnwlse prsvklcd in thir Â8morncnl' sellor is nol

rctylfig upon êny reprosotttltlonc nirdo by Büycf o' con'oony in cnteriug tltc trans¡ction oonlomplo(ed

lrcro¡y, Êuch $ellor f\rrÚlc' Ioprcscntr a¡d wtrrnnß.belng fcrrrllir¡r wltlr ü¡o conqlí¿rtt lrnnSnotlo¡s

bclwce¡toncl¡oftlccomprny6ndlltrycr'rcepoctfvcly'witlrcachofTELD'LLCnnrlAtbcrlB'Fl¡ngud

rlovocabrsLrvingTrusr r)øtcóJur,y22nr{,2ü0Í,,r.hcrrulrsoctÌontrocurnor¡'núorrwithrcspccrrrcrororcoltos

lrs:s-lon{0oJ¡J6
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I ,r'.1{ . t

fncts nnd cirm¡ì

trônsaotions,soltcrfurtho"*p*unt'ån¿lwûrffmt{tlroac"utàcyoftholist(arrd'dollafarnounlã)0(
' ' 'hold ÊuYcrhÛfltsJY toln s¡ld

polenrlol ClÊim¡urts Dot fÖrth ¡¡r niiriUít *¡\" und o1þes to lndsmr:ffy nnd

agnìñstüynddlt¡$ñslclaitrl¡,oo"r'on¿'o¡uvathehåtcddottoru'¡ouotsinllXþibilAunrlwílhrtsþcctlo

ssid aruimorts or $rpeõr to any orhor otlrrhanru (inchrdhgwithout rirnrtrtron craip Þunlnp o'd Brlc ltiot?)'

: 
tlr Flrrv¿r. Tl¡o rep(esontallons,

untus, ttre sl¡lnrs of ¡uclì bthff cl¡ilnnnts ûssffls unll¡terql 
"groo'nenti 

with Euyor' Tlto represonta

wnruntlcg o¡d covcnants of sollcr Çont[incd in thtr A8recnr€/rt sh¿tl survlvo tlrc Ülorlng hsreof nnd shall

coûtilluc in full forca aud aFfout, solltr, howovcr, will nol bc rosponslblo tu paylho Bxhlbit A Cl¡lmnnu

,I

tholr pero{Jntøgo or dcbl. Thliwittbc Buycr'b o{rligtlon, movlng fowurd und Btlycr wlll oho nt¡hç ¡urc

thåt lny óngoingcorqpa'ybills (r¡tllitles, pcu'ty, rnrlorp'rsor attributuJ to tfi0idtû¡nhglh 'pro¡xrty}wlll

nor ba scllor,c obligutlon(u) 6om tho drte af'di*rlng, with Poto nnd À1, onwød'

5' FurthorAssud¡nuos ottd Çovodunl¡'

' .. ¡¡ ---- ,.--.,^--r"rr: * 
il I

(u) Eçch of llto pnrlloshotrcti s|nl!. upon rc¡*ona{rlii rcquolt, êxãoutô nnd dollvcr sJly

, ,\

ø¿ittonnl rloournorrt(s)nrrntt/or lnstnrnúnt(s) nnd tnkó,any ¡t¡rrl alf ictlon¡ lhat ar* tleomcd rotrcnably

næcssa{y or dcslrüblo by tho Ìoquosllng pa*y to aontulltÌilû(o lho lransnotlon conlont¡llrtod hcraby'

(b)Goolob¡l¡ntlClrlos¡h¡lldolivorul}book¡tndrocords(lncludfn8ohpçkcqnduny

othor m¡tsrl ¡l of company) to Buyor promplly nfìor closirrg''

d'öIoelrrg.lircclostngl,,Õlosln8,,)oflhgtrnnguotlonshorsundor¡hollbcconsummttsUpÓñthô

cx{isrlion of thiu rlgracilcnl åndi

(o) Tlrg dafivory hy $cllor lo $uyar of tha Asslgrrmcnt ln lhc fornr ritlrch{ hcroto ur

Ëxhlbil rtgrr ¡¡ç[ inoorponrtod horoin by lltls roforancc" ¿.a I'

]_,L

ì¡. 
l liì ),:'rlll.i.Ìr¡, i'''i) :¡ jiqt,';¡;'t 1¡ 

t,' t"

,rstnrtccC givlrtg rlso lir thi"i llt¡
' 1 !,l,jr,! i¿l ìI',r. il¡ii:i : f i'lli I 

:l' 
{'')

r,;hrist; Âgiuor¡ttri¡l ¡rrr<l llt

üfirzsu,iorrloou¡l 4

RTo020



¡.
dclivcry to $lullur bY

Closfdg rhdlt fnt o placc offcatva ttr¿ *day of Ooobtr' 200tt or ll ¡uoh otltor

¡.

' fimc æ.lhc Panlor flûY ûgfoo' " .

,(d¡ Sollor ¡nd Buvcr'ñrrthor roprcrcnt r¡d warranr -:t:: 

=*'oy1n'r 

*d

lndslnnl6o¡tion û¡td p0yffiffr obligatlonr nade lrr ltrlr-á'øærncnt shdl ¡urvivc clorlng'

?, Míqcollancot¡¡'

(o),Notlccg..dnyandoltnotlocgorrlÛmlndsbyonypgrtyhgütolorrtyoùtrparty'

n¡rú¡rcd oi dogrtcd ro bc grvør hcrun¿cr¡trurt bo in wrrtr¡u u¡¡d ¡hrt bo v,ldþ glvan or mrdo lf¡crvod

¡

,. porronorty, d¡*v*cd by r nntroiu*y ,"ooprr¿c¿ ovornrglrr oaürror ¡c¡rrocr er rf dooo¡rto¡r !1 tho uni.oa

StutstvluJl, oöil{fi;d, ro'nrn noulpt ¡oquætod' Forlsgo f'r!pdd' ndd¡tlsod r¡ fbllow¡:

tb)

(o)

' Jfloblryror¡

$loScflan

I

t
t
¡

{

f
I

I

!
I
t
:

t
I
l
¡
t

1

t

I
I

;

I

i
I

¡

'I
t

(bolobil.fus, r
3060 E, Po¡t trsd, frl l0
i¡i Vc¡ø,Nrv¡d¡ 8011{l

CqrluHucrt¡
30ó0 E, Porl Roud, #l l0
t¡r vogurNovrd¡ 891ä0

.tny ¡rurty h*bo r¡¡y oh'np hl¡ or fl¿ .:T, fbr thc Èurpo¡o of ruooivltr¡ 
'ottoc 

or dttrndl ¡r

hcrclnnbovo pravrdcd byo w¡ilton notloo grvun rn rho nrnnø ¡rbr¡curd to tho otha'party(lf)' All noll06l

shdlboasrpcolflcasroaronoblyrtcoõåtArytoonnbtplhôpW¡uoolv|n8lhc¡grtûtonrpondtho]ìtlo,

,l

0l
I
t
I
¡

5rtttú.1Û{r1oúIul
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,f;' l];i:i nl

) Oortct'tr Itr ¡,¡,

' 
*Sit{.r:, willtoitt g'lving of frlot to ìln contllct's f lnrv nrlc¡,'shül lgofcur hc vrlitli tY, cottsl rugl { orr, Porformmoo

sld cffpct of thir Agrccment'

(o)CorçouttoJurisdlcllon.Eaohparlyhcrotocongcntstothpjttrlsfllctlonof(htCoudsof

ths stnl¿ of Novnd¡ ln thc ovor¡t any ncllon irbrought to deolaratoty rcllof or enforc'øncnl of ¡ny of tho

lor¡ns oltd provluions of this A¡Fcarncnt'

,(d)Attornoys.Fcos'Untcsso(hcrwloerpcctficollyprovldedforhereln,cachpurtyhcrcto

snJll ¡c¿r its own nttornoyr, fu¿s lnsur¡çd ln tho negotintlon n¡d pro¡rnratlon of lhíl 'Agroarfucnt ortd nny

rstntcrlclciouments. 
.Í;n tho ovcnl r¡nt arryicllol orprococrllrlg ls institulatl tå lntorp'al0¡ cnforos lhs tpnns

oncl provisions öf t¡ly{srcøncnl, howou"r, thoprovalllngpnrtyshdl bs cntltled lo ll¡ co¡t¡ nnd lttonroyp'

¡¡ç.r, in sddillsn lð

I
; lÏ ":i:fi]"i ;i:l ¡îni lüfå'LiiÍri$*ï;ilr;il' -hlllì ;liir t)

(ir

r

tüiF¡¡.t{tf

lv),, IttuP¡ttltton. ln tho lnrorprotntlon ofihlo Agrccmcnt, ihoslngttlarmryboroud or the I

pluml,anrlvlcovuteu,tltcnattergøldorp¡lhgn¡n$culltroorfclrtlttlnc,attdvloêvo¡.slt¡ndllrofUhrotonst

ss thc päst or ptesont, 
'¡td 

vlco vorsq' ålt intwchnngoably w lhe conloxl lnoy requlrÛ ln ordø l0 ft¡lìy

.. cff¡ohrsto rho inlsnt of tho pnrlicc and ttrc rr¡¡suotlon¡ {Ðnlëmplut'd hcruin, 8y¡11¡lx rhrll ylcld to tho

rubslsxco sf'lho lonns trnä p,rovlsions høeol' Foro¿raph hootllug¡ arc for convsttloncc of raforurcc ônly

r, ¡nd ch¡ll not bo uscd ín tho intcrprctatjod'of rho Agfccmcnt' Unlasg tho contorl rpeolñoolly fllülts lo lho

*nuory,lllcxomptaeitcmtze<lorllstodhorcinnrglbrtllt¡glr¡tivopurpÖsÖcody,undthptlclctrlneol

lncluston uniu¡ gxctusiå ¡irorlus shntl not bc applior! ln lntcpretírig thle Agrærncnt'

.(f)Entlr.cAgrucrncnt,,lllisrlgrecrnent$etsfoÌtjrthecnlircuotjerrtondlrtgoflhopartfcs,

ond guporscdcs o, provrour lgreún¡cnt$, ncgotíatio*ii, 
'reiuroran,$, 

frrrrr rrn¿rcrsrarxrifrþ'1, H'lì'th0r rvrl{rol¡ or

A,t:t n f{ürzrrr.rur:<nel.r;[ 6 fit{t J,U,*

I
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;, , ¡i i,r,tliiirll't

,:tlfji,i,;il'!;*,,r,,,,t;iiui.,t'.,i.u,'*,',i,,i,;*i'iüi'*iit*ii,t,i,'i,'nnrhrchctlliei'tro'thisÂ¡¡iecntont

ffinnl1, 
'

(g) Modilications. 'lhiq ,{grocmcnt sbull not bo modifiod, utrc¡ttlal or ohangcd ln ul

rûûnarùnlols in writlng çx€aufcd by tho p*tleu hoæto'

(h) w¡f vcrs. Nd walvor olony oltho provlnions of lhis Agroomont ¡hdl ba ðoomad or

sh¡lt constitulc, n waivorof any othor provlslon, rvhethoror nol slmllnr' nor uh¡ll rny waiþø congtituta n

aontíntrlnßwdVci',sndnçwÉlvcirhtllboblndl¡gunlæssvidÇnccdbianinstn¡mcntlnwrltingaqd

orcculcd by ürø porty rn¡klng lhp wllvor'

, (l) Lva[dlty, tf any lcrm, p'rovlslon, covonnnt. or condltlon of thl¡ Agrcomont, or any

uppllcåtion lhoruof, ¡hould hi held by u cqurt .of compotcnt jurlsdlotlon lo bo lnvnlld' voìd or

uii¡rforø¡¡lo, thrt p,mvklon shtll bo deomcd rcvarqbli 0nd dl p'rovlciOlu, cçYon¡irls' and çndillonr of

$úe hgr.omonl, and all rpptlootlonr fhoæof notholdinv¡lÍd, vold orunøforsølfc"ltrdt oontlttpolnflll"

i: :::,: ;^ ".*". horåv. .
forcv and ¿ffocr rnd ¡halt ln nQ wly bo affcclcd' impdrcd or Invalidntod ll

(J) Bfnding Efftat, Thl¡ Agrcomcnt shall to binrllng on and lnuro to lho bo¡oût of tho

høl.is, poroonnl ropræwtrtlvoq tuooôttoru md pennlttod asslgno of lho parlice hûrclo'

(k) Countorpor{s. This ,{goÇñcut may þc o(ooutcd ín rnultlplo oountgrpai{r, lnoluding

fs$im{ls couhtcrparte, whlcb logother shúll aonstihte ofls ¡nd tho sa¡no doourncnl'

, (l¡ t'tcgit¡atËd Agrecntonl. Tlrls ls u nagotlalod Aß$omqn(' '{'lt 
prtrlol hevo prliolputod

lnltsprcporrtton'lnthoovsnlofrrnydieprtlorogurd{rrgltslntorprclation'ltshttlnolbcooncÙft¡odforot

ogainrt uny pnrty buscd upon tho gfounds tf,of 
'f¡u 

Á8trõ6r¡øt lvnr prcpnrod ùy any ano oilho partloc'

. 1\.

r?is¡Jrù/r4oúrcJâ 1 tt{, $,,fL

t

l"
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1"ç 
-}}fi'

0q¡ rãUa ¡,ftp (ot) uol ultll¡$ ueqt'uo¡lu¡¡q:V 0¡ 0+rrr na¡tr'rd qloqJI (l)

.splruloosrv ugllu¡r¡qrv umpeuJv er{¡ sr ltrÞs ldoo s pt¡rl (oo¡)Á¡rrd

Ðtllo c{l uodn ¡maær Pq 
ry,BW ¡tuodn o{l 'l¡otloillqry 'ro¡ 1fonb*r â$ Jo oôþres cql uro'J s$p (OC)

ffi rr¡¡¡,{ e tuodrert e lU l¡tq¡ pe^Jet s¡ tronhor e$ uroq'u uodn Áutd e q'L ' (E)

uollrfoo$rY uolloJllq¡v

Wôl¡Ðruvflü,r,t ,ro* oq ,¡oU, t*nU* oqt¡0,(dm I pur lucug?:ãV ¡lql ol (tol)Á¡¡sd 'ro4oor¡ 
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In the Matter Oft
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TELD, et al.
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DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CARLOS A. HUERTA/ an individual-;
CARLOS A. HUERTA as Trustee of
THE ALEXANDER CHRISTOPHER TRUST,
a Trust established ín Nevada
as assignee of interests of
GO GLOBAL,INC./ a Nevada
corporation; NANYAH VEGAS I LLCI
A Nevada limi-ted

Plainti ffs , Case No.:
A-l-3-686303-C

VS.
Dept. No.: XXVII

SIG ROGICH aka SIGMUND ROGICH
as Trustee of The Rogich Family
Irrevocabl-e Trust,' ELDORADO
HILLS, LLC, a Nevada l-imited
liabilít.y company,' DOES I-X;
and/or ROE CORPORATIONS f-X,
inclus ive ,

Defendants -

NANYAH VEGAS, LLC, a Nevada
Ij-mited liability company,

CONSOLIDATED WITH:

Plaíntiff,
Case No.:
A-16-1 46239-C

VS.

TELD, LLC, a Nevada límited
Iíability company; PETER
ELIADES, individually and as
Trustee of The Eliades Survivor
Trust of L0 /30 /O8,' STGMUND
ROGICH, individually and as
Trustee of The Rogich Family
Irrevocable Trust,' IMITATIONS,
LLC, a Nevada limited liability
company; DOE S I -X ,' and / or ROE
CORPORATIONS I-X, incl-usive,

DEPOSITION OF:

YOAV HARLAP

TAKEN ON

OCTOBER II, 2OI7

Defendants.

Reported
Job No. :

by:
693

Mon ce K. Campbell, NV CCR No. 31,2
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DEPOS IT ION OF YOAV HARLAP,

, located at 300

hel-d at

Fennemore Craì-g, P. C

Street, Suite 1-4OO,

October LA, 20I'/ , ãL

Campbe11, Certified

State of Newada.

South Fourth

on Wednesday,

Monice K.

and for the

Las Vegas, Nevada,

9:45 a.m., before

Court Reporter, in

APPEARANCES :

For the Plainti-f f :

FENNEMORE CRATG, P. C.
BY: SAMUEL S. LIONEL, ESQ.
300 S. Fourth Street, Suite
Las Vegas, Newada 89101
(702) 692-8000
sl-ionelGf claw. com

1"400

For the Defendants:

ROBISON, SIMONS, SHARP & BRUST
A Professì-onal Corporation
BY: MARK A. SIMONS, ESQ.
7L Washrì-ngton Street
Reno, Nevada 89503
(175) 329-3151

msimonsGrssblatnr. com

A]-so PresenL:

MELTSSA OLIVAS
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA; VfEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 1I, 20L1

9:45 A.M.

*****

(Counsel- agreed to waive the court
reporter's requirements under Rule

30 (b) (4) of the Nevada Rules of Civil
Procedure. )

Vfhereupon,

YOAV HARLAP,

having been sr^/orn to testify to the truth, the whol-e

truth, and nothing but the truth, was examined and

Lestif ied under oath as fol-lows:

EXAMINAT ION

BY MR. LTONEL:

O. What is your name?

A. Yoav Harlap.

O. Where do you live, Mr. Harlap?

A. Israel.
O. Vfhat city?
A. Herz1iya, H-E-R-Z-I-L-Y-4.

O. Have you ever had your deposit,ion taken

before?

A. No.

a. Do you know what a deposition is?
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A. I have been explained briefly by my

att,orney.

O. f'm having trouble hearing you.

A. T have been explained to by

O. Tt was explained to you by your lawyer?

A. Yes.

O. Let me give you a little more additional
explanation. I'm qoing to ask you questions whích

you are going to answer. The reporter, if everything
works, wilJ- transcribe them into a bookl-et whích wiÌl
be del-ivered to you. You will have a right to look

at it and see whether the anshlers are okay or whether

you want to change them. You have a right to change

them, but if you change them, T have a right to
comment on the change if Lhis case goes to trial.

Do you know of any reason why you cannot

have your deposition taken today?

A. No.

MR. LIONEL: Miss Reporter, would you mark

that as first exhibit.
(Exhibit Number 1 was marked.)

BY MR. LIONEL:

O. Let the record show t.hat Exhibit t has

been given to the witness. It is a notice of taking
deposition and request for production of documents.

Envision Legal Solutions 702-805-4800 scheduling@envision.legal
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Mr. Harlap, have you ever seen that
document, before?

A. Not that I recal-l-.

O. You notice that the document requests that
you bring to your deposition certain documents which

are set forth. Did you bring any of those documents?

A. I did not bring with me right now any

documents or documents that I had that hrere given

before to my attorney.

O. Do you have documents some of these

documents ?

A. I might have copies of what my attorney
has sent me.

MR. SIMONS: Just so the record's clear,
yollr request for production of documents is
defective. Al-so, Mr. Harlap is appearing in his
individual- capacity. If you're going to request

documents from thj-s individual, you'11 need to do a

proper subpoena on this individual.
MR. LIONEL: Vfhy is the request improper?

MR. SIMONS: Because under the rules,
there's a time period within which to respondr âs you

know. This subpoena this notice, to the extent it
would be classified as a request for production of
documents, doesnrt comply with the time requj-rements

Envision Legal Solutions 702-80s-4800 scheduling@envision.legal
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under the rules.
MR. LIONEL: You have not objected on the

record with respect to the notice and effectively
it's the second youtve gotten.

MR. SIMONS: I understand. But I don't
have to object if it's defective on its face.

BY MR. LIONEL:

O. Mr. Harlap, do you have a file with
documents with respect to Eldorado Hil-l-s, LLC?

A. The documents that I have l^tere al-l copies

of documents that I got from the attorney or he had

before.

O. rf m asking you about a tj-me before you had

this attorney. I'm asking you

A. T had very few documents. They hlere all
sent to my attorney.

O. Do you have any documents no\^/ in your

office with respect to Eldorado Hil-l-s?

A. Copies of the interrogatories papers, fly
deposition, et cetera, I do have that, yês.

O. You do have the Answers to
Interrogatories ?

A. Yes.

O. Vfhat el-se do you have with respect to
El-dorado Hills ?

Envision Legal Solutions 702-805-4800 scheduling@envision. legal



A. Iassumelhave
money transfer to Eldorado

O. Anything else?

historical
Hills as my

copies of my

investment.

A.

offhand.

O.

A.

very few

O.

Eldorado

A.

Not that I recall, but I cannot say

You might have?

Very slim chance. It hlas there \^Iere

papers there initially.
Do you have a fil-e with respect to

Hill-s ?

No.

O. Do you have a file with respect to your

investment that you are sui-ng about?

A. Only the very few documents that had to do

with which mostly I qot later on. I think there
was there might have been a paper there initially
f or the Canamex which r'rras not relevant anymore. And

maybe my accounting lady, but not with me, but with
her, might have copies of my money transfer to
El-dorado Hil-l-s as my investment.

O. Vühat did you have with respect to Canamex?

A. There \^/ere some drawings that I remember

seeing once very many years âgo, initially some

drawings of where it is. That's about it.
O. Vühen you say "that's about it, " that's the
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best you bel-ieve you have?

A. That's the best T believe I have.

O. Do you have any documents with respect to
Carlos Huerta?

A. No.

O. Do you have communications with Carlos

Huerta back in 2007?

A. Carl-os Huerta came over initially to my

houser so it was verbal-.

O. I rm asking you whether you have any

written documents.

A. No.

O. Did you ever have email-s from him?

A. Oh, yeah, I had email-s over the years, but

mostly technical. For example, I had to have an

American this was my first American investment,

and so I needed an accountanL, and I asked his
assistance to find a local one because that was the

only thing I had at the time here. So it didn't make

sense for me to go and seek somebody el-ser so he gave

me dj-rect.ion to somebody.

O. Did you have a number of emails from Mr.

Huerta in 2001?

A. I do not recal-l-.

O. How about in 2008?

Envision Legal Solutions 702-805-4800 scheduling@envision. legal
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A. I do not recal-l.

O. Did you have any emails from him strike
that.

What kind of a file did you have with
respect to this matter?

A. Very few pages that I recal-l. I hardly

had any material- regarding this matter. I had a

verbal- agreement. I had a money transfer. Thatts

about it.
O. I'm asking you about documents.

MR. SIMONS: He's answered.

THE VüITNESS: I answered.

BY MR. LÏONEL:

O. Do you have any documents with respect to
Go Global- in your file?

A. Not that I recal-l.

O. Do you know who Go Global is?
A. Go Global-r âs far as I recall, is Carlos

Huerta.

O. His company?

A. I think so.

O. Do you have an operating agreement for
Nanyah Vegas?

A. Vühat is an operating agreement?

O. You don't know what it is?

Envision Legal Solutions 702-805-4800 scheduling@envision.legal
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A. No.

O. You had an accountant, you sây, here in
Las Vegas?

A. Yes.

O. Do you still- have an accountant here?

A. Not anymore. I moved from his services a

few months ago.

O. Is that Dustin Lewis?

A. No. His name was Brent. Barlow.

O. Did you ever talk to Dustin Lewis?

A. f don't even know who he is.
O. Have you now told me, to the best of your

recol-l-ection, what documents you had?

A. I just did.

O. Vfhat did you do to prepare for this
depos it ion?

A. I read my deposition. I read the

interrogatory questions. I sabr the aqreement,

refreshed my memory regarding the agreement of my

of the agreement that showed my due interest in
Eldorado Hil-Is and the fact that T will- I am a

claimant f or El-dorado Hil1s. That's ít.
O. Vühat documents did you look at with

respect to Eldorado Hill-s?

A. Vfell, the agreement that supposedly sold

Envision Legal Solutions 702-80s-4800 scheduling@envision. legal
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the rights, if I recall- if this is what you call
this document that r^ras signed, I think, between Sig

Rogich and his partners. Whatever was part of the

f ile that was submit,ted to court.

a. Vfhere did you look at this?
A. I looked at it, over the Internet.

O. Hmm?

A. On the computer, on the email. Not email,

on the questions that I
MR. SIMONS: I think he Counsel, I

think he I s explaining the complai-nt.

MR. LIONEL: Ird l-ike to hear his
explanation, Counsel-.

MR. SIMONS: Go ahead. Do you have a
question?

BY MR. LTONEL:

O. Sure. Tell- me again what that document is
you looked at.

A. As far as I recall, there were a bunch of
documents that hrere passed between my attorney and

myself in regards to what we submitted to court in
respect of this l-awsuit.

O. Vühen did you look at these?

A. At the time when I had to when I was

instructed by my attorney to go over it.

Envision Legal Solutions 702-80s-4800 scheduling@envision.legal



O. Vühen was this?
A. A few months ago. When I was summoned,

when h/e tried to make the dates f or here.

O. And these are documents that you have at
your office?

A. I don't have physical-ly even one documenL.

There are some documents that rdere in an email-

which were sent to me by email.

O. By whom?

A. By my attorney.

O. And you still have these documents?

A. I suppose so.

O. V[e]-I, you just looked at them, didn't you?

A. Yeah.

MR. SIMONS: He said a few months ago.

THE VüITNESS: A f ew months ago.

BY MR. LIONEL:

O. You haven I t looked at them in the l-ast

month ?

A. No.

O. Did you l-ook at any contracts in the last
month ?

A No.

Just the documents the attorney sent you?

Correct.
O
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O. You didn't look at any documents that you

had since 2001 or 2008?

A. No.

O. Did you prepare with anyone? Did you

prepare with your attorney?

A. I think t,hat, what I have spoken with my

at.torney is privileged information.

O. frm not asking you for the information.
Irm asking you whether you spoke wit.h him in
preparing.

A. Vüe briefly spoke about the process that
I'm going to go through l-ike you have explained to me

this morning

O. When did you do that with your attorney?

A. Yesterday.

O. Did you see Mr. Huerta yesterday?

A. No. Huerta, you mean, Carlos?

O. Carl-os .

A. No, I have not seen him this time¡ ño.

O. When is the last time you saw him?

A. Vfhen I saw you.

O. That il-l--fated day?

A. That was the last ti-me I sahl him and spoke

to him.

O. Did you speak wit,h me?

Envision Legal Solutions 702-805-4800 scheduling@envis ion. legal



A. With him.

O. V[ith him. I rm sorry.
Now, whenever I say "you, " I want to

ffm talking about Nanyah Vegas. You understand that?
A I assume so.

And if I say just
about Nanyah Vegas.

O

talking
there ?

"Nanyah," al-so Itm

!{e're on the same paqe

A. (Witness nodded head. )

O. Thank you.

THE COURT REPORTER: Is that a "yes"?
THE VüITNESS: Yes .

BY MR. LIONEL:

O. Are you familiar with your complaint in
this acti-on?

A. In a general wây, yes.

O. When is the last time you looked at it?
A. A few months ago .

O. You have not l-ooked at it in the l-ast few

months ?

A. Not in the l-ast coupler 0o.

O. Where did you l-ook at it? In Israel?
A. I think I was in Greece, actuatly.
O. In Mykonos?

A. Probably.
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O. Carlos Huerta, he gave a deposition. Did

you l-ook at that deposition?

A. f rve l-ooked at all- sorts of papers that
were there, but I don't recal-l which one is which. I
donrt know.

O. Ifm asking you specifically about

A. I canft answer. I don't know.

O. a deposit,ion of Carlos Huerta.

A. I do not know.

a. You don't know if you looked at it?
A. No, f don't. There \^Iere a bunch of

papers. It was I mean, not physical but on the

computer, and I don't recal-I which paper is what.

O. You have no recoll-ection you've ever seen

Carl-os Huerta's depositJ-on in this case?

A. I might have. I donrt know.

O. Are you familiar with the purchase

agreement?

A. Vfhich purchase agreement?

O. fn this case. The purchase agreement

whereby Mr. Huerta got out of Eldorado.

A. If I'm not mistaken, t,his is the purchase

agreement that says that that acknowledges the

potential claims of Nanyah Vegas through

$1.5 million. If this is the document you refer to,

Envision Legal Solutions 702-80s-4800 scheduling@envision. legal
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then yes.

MR. LIONEL: Miss Reporter, woul-d you mark

this as Exhibit 2.

(Exhibit Number 2 was marked. )

BY MR. LIONEL:

O. Let the record show the witness is looking

at Exhibit 2.

A. Yes. Irve seen this page. Irve seen this
paper.

O. Vfhen's the ]-ast time you saw it before

today?

A. Last night.
O. Last night?
A. Yes.

O. Were you with your attorney preparj-ng?

A. Correct.

O. Are you familiar with the document?

A. Generally, yes.

O. Prior to last night, when's the last time

you sahr it?
A. Months ago .

O. Hmm?

A. Months ago .

O. Do you remember the occasion?

A. No.
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O. That is a 2008 document. Did you see it
in 2008?

A. I do not know.

O. You don't know. You don't know or you

don't remember?

A. I don't remember.

O. But you don't know?

A. I might have.

O. You might have. Okay.

A. I might have, because I do remember

vividly that, Carl-os have explained to ñêr if I'm not

mistaken, over the phone, that, my rights in the

Eldorado Hills are secured and that the buyer of
El-dorado Hills from him has Laken the commi-tment to
pay me or register my rights or pay me back my

investment in Eldorado Hills.
O. Vühen did Carlos tell you that?
A. This \^/as at the time when he explained to

me that he has his own issues. He had to sel-l and

that my rights remained there. But this is many

years â9o, so it I s the best of my recoll-ection f rom,

you know, the telephone conversation that was going

on.

MR. LIONEL: Woul-d you mark this as three,
Miss Reporter.
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(Exhibit Number 3 was marked. )

BY MR. LIONEL:

O. Vühen did you say was the last time you

looked at the complaint in this case?

A. A while ago.

O. A while ago. Do you remember t,he

reference to the Teld agreement in the complaint?

A. f remember that there was something l-ike

that, y€s.

O. Would you show Exhibit 3 to the witness,
please.

A. Teld is the Greek name guy, correct?

O. yes.

A. Eliades.

O. Look at Exhibit 3 and tell me the last
time you saw it.

MR. STMONS: Objection to the extent he's

never said he saw it.
THE Vf TTNESS: I do not even recall- whether

I saw it or not.
BY MR. LIONEL:

O. You don't know whether or not you saì^I it?
A. This one for sure, y€s.

O. Let the record show the witness is
referring to Exhibit 2.
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A.

O.

A.

remember.

O.

complaint

A.

know

O.

Flangas

This one I do not recall. f do not know.

Thatrs f i-ne.

I may have. I may have not. I just. don't

Do you remember referenced in the

you did see the complaint?

Yes, but it's a while ago I do not, you

Do you remember reference to the

A. I remember the name Flangas. I met this
name somewhere.

O. Mark this as four, Miss Reporter.
(Exhibit Number 4 was marked. )

BY MR. LIONEL:

O. Mr. Harlap, have you seen that document

before ?

A. I donrt know. I might have. I might have

not.

O. lVhat's the basis for your claims in this
case, Mr. Harlap?

A. I have made an investment directly into
Eldorado Hi11s, which was a real estate property
outside of Las Vegas, shooting range, if I remember

correctly, or part of it ,r^ras a shooting range. I
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knew that it, h/as an area that would take some time to
develop. A road woul-d probably a main road would

probably go by it at some point, and this area would

be destined to be logistics hub for the expansion of
Las Vegas.

Thisr âs far as T recall, was the general

explanation when Carlos came to my house and pitched

me the deal. I transferred the money to Eldorado

Hil-1s as per Carl-os Huerta I s wiring instructions.
And as far as I r^ras concerned, that was pretty much

ir.
O. What you said nor^r is based upon what

Carlos tol-d you; is that correct?
A. I believe that at the time he also showed

me r as I tol-d yoü, there was the talk about Canamex,

an adjacent plot that \^/as not possible to bry, and

then he suggested that I go into the first lot, that
they've just, bought, which \^/as the Eldorado Hil-ls.
And I agreed to divert my money and transfer it. to
Eldorado Hill-s and do the deal- with them and be

invol-ved with them on that deal.

O. You're talking about something which

happened when?

A. In 2001, 2008, something like that.
O. Is there any documentation with respect to

Envision Legal Solutions 702-805-4800 scheduling@envision. legal
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that?
A. The money transfer to El-dorado Hills, I

think hre have that.
O. Anything else?

A. Nothing except the documents that I assume

are part of this litigation.
O. You have documents with respect to the

money transfer?
A. Probably in my accountant's file. There

are documents showing that I transferred that this
on that date, the sum of one and a half million
dol-l-ars to the account.

O. To what account?

A. To the account Carl-os Huerta¡ âs far as

I recall, it hras an El-dorado Hill-s' account.

O. And that's what Carlos told you?

A. Might have . I don' t recall- . But,

probably. I didn't tal-k to other people except him

and Jacob Feingold in respect to this deal. They

hrere the only people T knew that had to do with this
deal-. I never spoke to anybody el-se in respect to
this deal.

O. Do you have any email-s with respect to it?
A. Not that I recall.

O. Any emails with respect to transferring

Envision Legal Solutions 702-805-4800 scheduling@envision.legal
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the money or anything like that?
A. I donrt recall.
O. You don't recal-l if you have any emails?

A. Exactly.

O. You may have some emails stil-l- in the

file?
A. I havenf t looked at that fil-e as much as

you woul-d call- it a fi1e. So I donf t know. I really
don't, know.

O. Letfs call it a file. What do you have in
ir?

A. I have no idea. I haven't looked I
havenrt looked at this folder in my email thing in
years.

O. Four years?

A. In years.

O. In years. Since 2007?

A. I donrt know. No. I may have. I may

have l-ooked at it. You know , for example , íf I got

from the accountant at the time something to sign or

to pay or something, I would probably fil-e it under

that folder.
O. You said you're famil-iar with the purchase

agreement ?

A. I'm familiar with this agreement?
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O. yes.

A. Exhibit 2?

O. yes.

A. I'm famil-iar with this one.

O. But you're not famil-iar with three or

four?

A. Irm not sure.

O. Does Exhibit 2 have anything to do with
your claim in this case?

A. Absolutefy.

a. Vühat does it have to do?

MR. SIMONS: Objection to the extent it
cal-l-s for a legal conclusion.

BY MR. LIONEL:

O. Your understanding.

MR. SIMONS: Again, I get to make

objections for the record. Just to keep it clear
what, you're obJ-igated to ask for or answer and then

we can deal with it later. But unless I instruct you

not to anshrer, you're stil-l to answer the question.

Does that make sense?

THE WTTNESS: So I am to anshrer the

question?

MR. SIMONS: Right. But sometimes I will
interject and makes objections.
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THE VIITNESS: Okay.

MR. SIMONS: Vfhat r^ras the question again?

(Vühereupoñr the following question was

read back by the court reporter:
Question: "Vfhat does it have to do"?)

MR. SIMONS: Same objection. Go ahead.

THE VIITNESS: To the best of my

understanding, according to Exhibit 2, it is clearly
showing that when Sig Rogich sol-d his rights in
El-dorado HiÌls, he sorry. Hold on. Sorry.

BY MR. LIONEL:

O. I don't want you to read from there. I
want your recol-lection, please.

A. That. when Carlos left Eldorado Hills and

sol-d his part, whatever it is, his part, to Sig

Rogich Foundation, or whatever it I s ca11ed, the

foundation took upon itsel-f the commitment and

acknowl-edged the fact that Nanyah Vegas had a claim

for 1.5 mil-l-ion in equity of El-dorado Hills, and

there is an annex or a what do you call- it
appendix, Exhibit no Exhibit

O. Exhibit A?

A. Exhibit A. Exhibit A that shows clearly
the 1.5 mill-ion as a potential cl-a j-mant.

O. And that's the basis for your claim?

Envision Legal Solutions 702-805-4800 scheduling@envision.legal
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MR. SIMONS: Oblection. Thatfs not what

he said.
THE WITNESS: The basis for my cl-aim are

established by my legal counsel- based on the fact
that I could provide or that he coul-d find in
regarding to this case. I am no lawyer. So I woul-d

not know what is the basis of my rights, except the

fact that I know that I i-nvested in El-dorado Hills
$1.5 mil-Iion. That at some point Carl-os, with whom I
initially invested, l-eft the company for whatever

reasons and made sure that my rights remained.

BY MR. LIONEL:

O. Vfho made sure?

A. CarIos.

O. What did he tell you?

A. I donf t recall- what he told me. I think
that this document shows, maybe there are other

documents that al-so show, ffiy rights to the

$1.5 mil-lion as a potential claj-mant for El-dorado

Hills.
O. You have read the purchase agreement,

haven't you?

A. This one?

O. yes.

A. I have .
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O. A number of times?

A. I don't know. It could have been just
once. It coul-d have been a couple. I donrt know.

O. You don't know whether your claims are

based upon that purchase agreement?

MR. SIMONS: He just answered that he saj-d

itf s absolutely, Counsel-, and now you're trying to be

argumentative.

BY MR. LIONEL:

O. Answer, please.

A. As f told you, the basis of my cl-aims are

establ-ished by my legal counsel. It's up to him to
tel-l me whether I have rights or I don't have rights
based on the paperwork that I coul-d supply or that he

coul-d get.

O. I want your understanding. I don't
care I'm not. referring to what your counsel tel-ls
you.

Ts it your understanding that that
agreement affords you rights with respect to your

claim?

A. Yourre relating, again, to an agreement,

and I'm not going to answer you in regarding to the

agreement whether it I s establ-ishing my rights. But

my rights are established, to the best of my
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understanding, based on the position of my attorney.

O. And thatrs it?
A. That together with all the paperwork that

supports it, I assume.

O. But you're relying on the basis of what

your attorney has tol-d you?

A. On the one hand, on that. On the other
hand, on the fact that I know that f have paid one

and a half million doll-ars i-nto Eldorado Hil-ls and

that, to the best of my understanding, ãL some point
somebody took the liberty, Sig Rogich took the

liberty to supposedly sel-l his parts there and mine

too, in a wây, without me getting any money for it.

O. Please explain "mine too. "
A. My rights in Eldorado Hj-lls, the one and a

half million dollar potential claims of rights in
Eldorado Hills.

O. How do you know he sold them?

A. Because, to my understanding t or to what

Carl-os tol-d me at some point or the paperwork that I
have seen, I do not know which ones, I understood

that there was a deal- between Sig Rogich and this
Greek named gvyt Eliades, who held, T believe, these

companies and another one/ Flangas, in which he sol-d

the rights. I don't even remember in what portions
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or whatever. Sold, l-oan, something like that.
O. And thatrs based upon what Carlos told

you?

A. No. There \^rere some f assume and as

far as I I assumed there hras paperwork that
rel-ated to that that my attorney has seen, and based

upon them, he suggested that my rights are there.

a. That's the extent of your knowledge with
respect to the basis for your claim?

A. Repeat that.
MR. LIONEL: Miss Reporter.
(Vfhereupoñr the following question was

read back by the court reporter:
Question: "That's the extent of your

knowledge with respect to the basis for
your claim"?

THE VfITNESS: Pretty much.

BY MR. LIONEL:

O. Do you know Mr. Sig Rogich?

A. If ve met him once in your office.
O. Did you talk with him?

A. Only in front of you. Not before and not

after, unless you came into the room a couple of
minutes l-ater, but that's it.

O. Did you ever have any business dealings
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with him?

A. Never .

O. Any contracts with him?

- Any?

O. yes.

A. Me personally?

O. You personally?

A. Only through

O. You or Nanyah?

A. Nanyah Vegas only as far as the

paperwork relating to this case. Nothing but that.
O. Are you referring to Exhibit 2?

A. Among other things, ât least to Exhibit 2

O. Vfhat other things ?

A. I don't know. As much as other paperwork

relating to these deals exist., I'm also relating to
them.

O. Do you know the Rogich Trust?

A. I heard the name or I came across it in
one of the papers.

a. That's the extent of it?
A. Yes.

O. How about Eldorado Hills?
A. Same.

O. You never had any dealings wit,h it?
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A. Not except what is written here.

O. Vfhat is written in Exhibit 2?

A. And the money transfer that I did.

O. And the money transfer to Eldorado Hil-l-s?

A. The money transfer that I did initially
for the investment in Eldorado Hills.

O. Vfhen did you transfer the money?

A. I don' t remember .

MR. SIMONS: Asked and answered.

MR. LIONEL: Did he say before he didn't
remember?

MR. SIMONS: No, he said in 2001.

THE VüITNESS: Yeah, 'J . Around there but

I cannot tel-l you the date. Coul-d be ' 6, coul-d be

'8. I don't know.

BY MR. LÏONEL:

O. Do you know Teld?

A. I heard the name.

O. That's the extent of it?
A. Yes.

O. No dealings with TeId that you know of?

A Except what

You mean there may be some papers, are youo

saying?

A The papers that are around here. Other
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than that, not that I know of.
O. You're talking about Exhibit 3?

A. Maybe. Maybe other exhibits, too.

O. Do you know the Flangas Trust?

A. The same.

O. When you say "the samer " you really had no

dealings with it?
A. Personafly, I had no dealings with it

beyond the fact that they, to my understanding,

purchased some rights in El-dorado Hills to which I am

a potenti-al claimant to.
O. Vfhat are you a claimant of?

A. To 1.5 million worth of ownership in
Eldorado Hills.

O. What's that got to do with Teld?

A. Vfel-l-, Teld, to my understanding, is a

company that bought, ât a later stage, some of the

rights to El-dorado Hills.

O. That's the extent of what you know about

Teld?

A. Yes.

O. Do you know Mr. Eliades, Pete Eliades?

A. Personally not.
MR. LIONEL: Do you know how to spell

that ?

Envision Legal Solutions 702-805-4800 scheduling@envision.legal



Y MR.

LLC?

O.

question.
A.

O.

A.

O.

A.

O.

A.

O.

A.

have but

a.

lawsuit ?

A.

THE COURT REPORTER: Yes.

LIONEL:

O. Do you know anything about Imitations,

A. No.

O. Did you ever hear that name before?

A. Not that I recall.

O. Do you know the woman sitting at my right

hand, Mel-issa Olivas?

A. By the l-ooks of her,

I agree with that.
I might want to.

But ansr^rer the

Other than thatr ño.

Do you know Mr. Brandon McDonal-d?

No.

Did you ever hear that name before?

I don I t recal-l hearing the name.

How about Summer Rell-mas, R-E-L-L-M-A-S?

I don't know.

You don't know that name?

I don I t recal-l hearing the name. f may

I don't recal-l- .

Do you know what an interrogatory is in a

Not precisely, no.
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O. How about imprecisely?

A. Questioning.

O. Itfs questioning. Did you ever answer

int.errogatories ?

A. You mean other than in this case?

O. In this case.

A. In this case?

O. yes.

A. Yes. As far as I recall, there were

questions that hrere sent to me and I had to anshrer.

O. Did you ever answer interrogatories in
another case?

A. No. I mean, not that I recall-. There

r^/ere proceedings, initial proceedings at some point
that were rejected by court, and then we appeal-ed.

So maybe there \^/as something in this respect, but I
don't know if there were interrogatories or not or

what it \^/as or to what extent I then gave any

information. I do not recall.
MR. LIONEL: Vfould you mark this.
(Exhibit Number 5 was marked. )

BY MR. LÏONEL:

O. Mr. Harlap, do you now have Exhibit 4 in
front of you?

A. I have Exhibit 5 in front. of me.

Envision Legal Solutions 702-805-4800 scheduling@envision. legal



MR. LIONEL: Is it five?
THE COURT REPORTER: Yes.

Y MR. LÏONEL:

O. Ifm sorry. That's Nanyah Vegas, LLC|s

First Amended Answers to Defendants' First Set of
Interrogatorì-es; is that correct?

A. Apparentfy.

O. Are you f amil-iar with them?

A. I think that T have gone through them,

yes. As far as I recall, I have gone through them.

Not in paper¡ orr the on the computer.

O. On the computer.

You said that you h/ere sent

interrogatories; is that correct?
A. Yes.

O. On the computer?

A. f think sor yeah. I think it was a hefty
file. It could have been this one.

O. Did you first receive interrogatories
strike that.

That has interrogatories and answers; is
that correct?

A. Yes, I think so.

O. Go ahead and l-ook at it.
A. Yes, they are Answers to Interrogatories.
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O. Díd you first receive a set of
interrogatories ?

A.

was asked

as far as

there was

then there

O.

A.

O.

questions,

A.

O.

A.

a.

A.

recal-1, I
O.

A.

O.

office.
A.

and I answered

o. Did

I think so. I don't recal-I. Because I
to answer questions, I answered questions

I recall, but whether it's this one or

I think there was an initial- seL and

r^/as another set which r^ras much bigger.
And did you answer the interrogatories?
As far as I recall, yês.

You received interrogatories which are

correct ?

Correct.
And did you anshrer them?

To the best of my understanding, I have.

Tell me what you did.
I read through the questions. As far as I

read through the questions

Want to change chaj-rs?

No, ít's okay.

I donrt want you falling down in my

No.

As

No. It's okay.

far as I recall, I read the questions,

them. That I s as much as I recall-.
you answer them on the computer?
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A. Yeah. I havenrt I have done nothing in
writing. Thatrs for sure. In handwriting, I've done

nothing.

O. So you received the questions on the

computer, the interrogatories?
A. f Lhink so. I'm not sure. I think sor

yeah. Yeah, T think so.

O. Vghy do you say "I think so"?

A. Because I'm not 100 percent surer so I
just think so. Because I do not recall something

else, but f do not recal-l that in particular as well.
O. It came to you on the computer?

A. Most probably.

O. Could they have come to you in print?
A. I don't
O. In type?

A. TheoreticalJ-y, it could have been FedExed

to me. But you know how much informatj-on If m getting
and paperwork in my office every day, you know, from

dealings that I have throughout the worl-d? T do not

recal-l that or the other paper, whether it was on the

computer or whether it rn,las in a FedEx package or

whatever.

O. And you answered the questions?

A. To the best of my recoll-ection.
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O. On the computer or in longhand or with a

typewriter?
A. I did not type, I meanr orr the typewriter.

And I for sure I did not do anything in
handwriting.

O. You don't know how you answered them?

A. T don't remember. But probably if I
answered, I probably typed on the computer, answered

the questions that my attorney asked or things like
that.

O. And you answered al-l- the questions?

A. As far as I recal-l-. I do not recal-l- my

lawyer telllng me that he's missing an anshrer.

O. As far as you recall you answered all the

interrogatories ?

A. As I tol-d your as far as I recall, my

lawyer never told me that he I s missing an anshrer f rom

me.

O. And where did the information come from so

that you could answer these questions?

A. The ones I coul-d answer from my memory, I
answered from my memory.

O. How about those you didn't have a memory

of?

A. So I probably told my lawyer I do not have

Envision Legal Solutions 702-805-4800 scheduling@envision. legal



questions.

O. Did you have anything to look at to help

you answer the questions?

A. If I had, it \^ras paperwork that was

resubmitted to me with the questions in the email

from my attorney.

O. Did you have the

A. I don't recal-l- having going to a file,
taking out papers and looking at them in order to
answer.

O. You donft remember getting anything to
help you answer?

MR. SIMONS: Thatfs not what he said.
That mischaracterizes his testimony. Hers already
said he got documents from the attorney.

MR. LIONEL: Would you read back the

a memory.

O.

A.

answer,

times so

one.

I thought

As far as

you answered all the questions?

I could, I did ans\^rer all the

Four is lucky.
Wel-l-, four will be the last

Miss

MR

far.
MR

MR

LIONEL:

SÏMONS:

Reporter?

. SIMONS: Vfhich one? He said it three
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Y MR. LIONEL:

O. I think you answered that you didnrt go to

any books or anything like that to help you; is that
correct ?

A. I don't have a physical fol-der in my

office at home, which is where I work from most of
the time, that has paperwork relating to this
investment. I assume that if I looked at something,

it h/as in the f il-e in the fol-der on my computer.

O. Vfhat do you have in the file on your

comput.er?

A. Only what I tol-d you. I donrt remember

what I have on my computer. But if I looked at
anything, this woul-d have been the place where T

wor:ld probably f ind ít.
O. How long did it take you to ansl^/er the

questions the interrogatories?
A. Oh, reading it was a long thing,

especially the second version.

O. How long did it take you¡ approximately?

A. A few days.

O. Did you have Mr. Carlos Huertars

deposition at the time you answered them?

A. I think youfve asked me this question, and

I do not know.

Envision Legal Solutions 702-80s-4800 scheduling@envision.legal



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

B

9

10

11

I2

13

T4

15

76

71

1B

I9

20

27

22

23

24

25

Harlap, Yoav October lI,2017 Page 41

O. No, I did not.
MR. SIMONS: You asked him if he had the

deposition. Let's do this. Lay the foundation

whether he knows what a deposition is.
BY MR. LÏONEL:

O. You know what a deposition is, don't you?

A. I think so.

O. You think so.

Itrs a littl-e booklet with questions and

answers.

A. Yes.

a. Correct. And you donrt remember whether

you saw Carlos Huerta I s deposition?

A. This is what I told you before.

O. Correct, T'm asking you whether that
means you did not have the deposition of Mr. Huerta

at the time you did the Answers to the

fnterrogatories ?

A. This is not what I said.

O. Tel-l- me what you said.

A. I said that I do not know nor remember

whether I had it or I didn't have it,.
O. Do you know whether you used it in

conjunction with preparing

A. I do not remember what I used or what I
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did not use.

O. frve got to get this on the record

c1early.
A. Go ahead.

O. You do not remember whether you used the

Huert,a deposition to prepare your Answers to t,he

Interrogatories ?

A. I do not recall- using or not using any

such paper because I do not know if I had ever seen

such paper or not. f don't remember. And if I said

at any point that I did in writing, it means that T

did.
O. Would you open your Exhibit 5 to page 4.

I fm going to take you down to line I'm going to
start reading from l-ine t9 into the record.

"Additionally, facts supporting Nanyah's rights and

cl-aims are set forth in the transcript of the

deposition of the person most knowledgeable of Nanyah

Vegas/ LLC, pursuant to N.R.C. P. 30 (b) (6) taken on

April 3rd, 2014, Nanyah deposition, ât page and

l-ine 2526-27:4, the documentation relati-ng to
Nanyah's $1,500,000 investment in Eldorado, including
bank statements from Nevada State Bank and agreements

executed in 2001 and 2008, including the purchase

agreement, 28z4-I3, Nanyah transferred $1r500r000 to
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Eldorado, most likely by wire, 29:9-31:19. Carlos

Huerta coordinated and expected transfer of 1r 500,000

f rom Yoav Harlap on behalf of Nanyah to El-dorado' s

bank account with Nevada State Bank. "

Did you write that answer?

A. Most probably.

O. I beg your pardon?

A. Most probably.

O. Most probably. You don't know whether you

did or didn't?
A. I do not remember.

O. And you wrote it wherer ofl the computer?

A. If, then yes.

O. Hmm?

A. If I wrote if, then yes.

O. Now, if you l-ook at page 5, you will see

that everything there is shown as comi-ng from Carlos'
deposition. Do you see that on page 5?

A. If I read page 5, I can tel-l-.

O. Sure. Sure.

A. Vfhat is the question?

O. The question is: Did you write everything

that appears orì. page 5 ?

A. T do not remember.

O. Do you remember
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A. I don't think I don't think that I
wrote it. I think that this is the deposition of
Mr. Huerta.

O. Mr. Harlap, the references here are to
Huerta's deposition.

A. So obviously I did not write
MR. SIMONS : Hol-d on. Vfhat I s the

question?

MR. LIONEL: I havenrt got it out yet.
MR. SIMONS: I know.

BY MR. LIONEL:

O. Vühat appears here on page 5, and if you

l-ook, it's al-so most of page 6, is information
purportedly coming from the deposition of Carl-os

Huerta.

A. Apparently so.

O. And my question to you is: Ilüho prepared

that page 5 and most of page 6?

MR. SIMONS: Counsel, I'm g¡oing to dj-rect

your attention to page 2, and you will see that these

interrogatory ansrú/ers are prepared on behalf of
Nanyah by and through its undersigned counsel. Your

question on Interrogatory 1 is, "What are the rights
and claims of Nanyah, the basis for such rights and

claims, " and et cetera.
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So in your interrogatory, youtve asked a

party for its legal rights and its legal claj-ms. So

that information is to be provided by counsel in
order to be complete and accurate.

I get to say what I get to say.

In response to your interrogaLory, the

response has been verified by the client. That means

theyr re bound by those answers.

MR. LIONEL: I understand he's bound by

them. That,'s why I f m asking him.

MR. SIMONS: WeIl, you also understand

that Nanyah entity is Nanyah Vegas is an entity,
not an individual-. So, therefore, it's entitled to
rely upon information that its agents acquired.

MR. LTONEL: That's a speaking objection,
Counsel.

MR. SIMONS: I know, but you're trying to
confuse this gentleman.

MR. LIONEL: I'm not, trying to confuse

him. My questì-ons are straight forward. He's

intelligent. He anshrers them. Vühy am I confusing

him? The question is very straight forward. I'm
asking whether he wrote what appears on page 5 and

most of page 6 of this Exhibit 5. That's a straight
forward either he did or he didn't.
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THE Vf ITNESS: Vfhat is written on page 5 is
t.aken f rom the deposition of Carl-os Huerta.

Obviously, I did not write the deposition of Carlos

Huerta.

In regards to the answers to the

interrogatory questj-ons that you've sent to rn€r they

r^rere primarily prepared with my counsel. I answered

what I coul-d anshrer to him, but, of course, I am not

the one putting the exact wording as to ans\^rer your

questions. I'm not a lawyer.

BY MR. LIONEL:

O. Somebody wrote page 5 and 6, okay?

A. Obviously, the assembly of al-l the

material- was done by my attorney's office.
O. Oh, the attorney's office wrote this?
A. The attorney's office compiled all the

informatj-on. Whether some of it came from a question

they asked me or not, I do not recall-. Whether

something hras a question over the phone may have been

because we had a couple of phone conversations as

well. But I do not know how to prepare something

l-ike this. This is the job of my attorney.

O. I'11 accept that from you¡ but my question

is, then you did not write page 5 and page 6?

A. If you think that I physically typed al-l
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these pages, no.

O. Here, Ìetrs take Exhibit 5. Vühat is your

work in it? Vfhat can you

A. f do not recall per page what \^/as my work.

My work was basically I had a couple of cal-l-s with my

attorney. Vüe went over generally, he sent me some

reading material-. I read through it. He asked me if
I had any specific remarks in that respect. As far
as I recall, I did not have any specific remarks. He

sent me a fínal- version. I went through it. It took

a few days. I didn't see there anything that was

that seemed to me like something that I coul-d not

support. And thatrs it.
O. Did you read this entire document?

A. T have. Unfortunately, I had to, yes.

O. Turn to page 97. You see on the fourth
line it says, "Contemporaneous with the execut,ion of
the purchase agreemeñt, " t,hat paragraph. Would you

read it to yourseÌf, please.

A. Until where? Until 9?

O. To l-ine 9, okay? You read it. If m not

concerned with do you know where that paragraph

came from?

A. I don' t remember .

a. Vfould it surprise you when I tell you it
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came from paragraph 38 of your complaint, word for
word?

A. It wil-l- not do anything to ñêr surprise or

not surprise.

O. Did you use the complaint in preparing

this document?

A. My attorneys used the paperwork that they

needed to use. I read through it. I answered

questions as far as they were I answered questions

as far as my attorney had questions. That's it.

O. Are al-l- the answers in Exhibit 5 true?

A. I think that everythi-ng that I that I
have written through my attorney is true.

O. I'm asking you whether everything in
Exhibit 5, al-l the answers, are true?

A. As far as I remember, yês, absol-utely.

O. And you're telling me you l-ooked at al-l-

the answers in here?

A. I read the whole paper, pretty muchr âs

far as I remember.

O. Vüould it surprise you when I tell- you this
particular paragraph nor^r that you read is repeated 25

times in this document?

A. No. There were a lot of paragraphs that
hrere repeated. Because, if I remember correctly,
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there r^ras a first version and then you asked for a

more el-aborate one and then and then it btas

prepared and everything repeated itself again and

again.

O. f'm only concerned about the second

version, which is the Exhibit 5.

A. Okay.

O. Irm telling you this paragraph is repeated

no less than 25 times in this document.

MR. SIMONS: There's no question. He I s

making a statement. So what? Vühat,'s the question?

Donrt answer. There's no question pending.

BY MR. LIONEL:

O. Were you ahrare t,hat as many as 25 times

that paragraph

A. I didn't count.

O. And you would have answered that 25 times?

A. Pardon?

O. And you answered that strike that.
MR. SIMONS: There's no question there.

BY MR. LTONEL:

O. And I will repeat againr âs far as you

know, everything all- the ansulers in here are true?

A. Correct.
MR. SIMONS: That's what the verification
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says.

MR. LIONEL: Except for those that said

upon information and belief, and as to those, he

bel-ieved them to be true.
MR. SIMONS: That's fair.

BY MR. LTONEL:

O. Vt7ould you l-íke to take a break,

Mr. Har1ap? I'm prepared to go forward.

A. !Íe can go f orward.

O. Good. Nanyah Vegas was formed in 2001.

Fair statement?

A. More or l-ess. It r^ras formed for the

purpose of this investment.

O. Vühat was your rol-e in its f ormation?

A. Probably signing a couple of papers.

O. Are you the manager?

A. Yes.

O. Are you the only one whots ever been a

manager of Nanyah Vegas?

A. Yes.

O. Vfhat are the duties of the manager?

MR. SIMONS: Objection to the extent
yourre asking for a legal concl-usion.

MR. LIONEL: No, itrs not.
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BY MR. LTONEL:

O. Vühat's your understanding of the duties of
a manager?

MR. SIMONS: Thatrs a better question.

THE VüITNESS: Like j-n any other company.

BY MR. LÏONEL:

O. Vfere there any particular duties?

A. I have to work in the best interest of the

company.

O.

A.

a.

Did Nanyah Vegas ever have any employees?

No.

Did you have any office?
A. There is a registered office, perhaps, but

not a physical officer ûo.

O. Flver have a bank account?

A. No.

O. In Israel- or in the United States?

A. Not that I recall, no.

O. Did it fil-e any tax returns?
A. Yes.

O. This company?

A. As far as I remember, y€sr through this
the Vegas account,ant..

O. Filed tax returns for
A. I don't know if it's call-ed tax returns,
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but I know that I because I had this company, I
had to have an accountant in America, and I took this
accountant and he did whatever he needed to do.

There are K1s, or whatever you call them, that every

year that he has to get and he does some reporting,
and whether it has to do with this or with the other

investments that I have in the US, Irm doi-ng that on

an annual basis, yes.

O. You know what a K1 is?
A. I know that there is such a form. Irve

seen it. I've signed it a hundred times, but the

legal standing of this document, I don't know.

O. Did you ever get a K1 wit.h respect to
Nanyah Vegas?

A. I don't know.

O. Do you have any recol-lection you ever sa\^I

one ?

A. I don't have recol-l-ection that I saw it.
I don't get into this at all- . I have so many

investments. I do not look at a1l these papers. I
have my accountants preparing the paperwork for me

and telling me where to sign, and this is what I do.

O. Do you sign the K1s?

A. If I need to, then I sign them. If I'm
instructed to by my accountant, I do.
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O. Tell me about your education, Mr. Harlap,
just briefly.

A. I graduated from hiqh school, and beyond

that I did a year and a half in the Haifa, H-A-T-F-A,

University in Israel, and then that, is where my

education, formal education ended, because I had to
take care of my interest in my family company.

O. What is your business?

A. Primarily \^re are car importers and

distributors.
O. Is the name of the company Col-mobil-?

A. Yes.

O. And how long have you been in that
business ?

A. Pretty much since I was born.

O. It's a family business?

A. Correct.

O. Now, you say you have investments al-l- over

the world?

A. I have other investmentsr y€s.

O. You have no other investments in the

United States?

A. I do. But al-l- my investments in the

United States are after this one, except if there was

a some fund or something that I invested or my
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family office invested through, and I don't even

know.

O. Tel-l- me what records you have of this
investment.

A. Of which investment?

O. This investment in Nanyah.

MR. SIMONS: Asked and answered. You went

over that first thing.
THE WITNESS: In Nanyah?

BY MR. LIONEL:

o. Yes.

A. Or in Eldorado Hill-s?

O. Either one. In Eldorado Hills. Go ahead.

A. I don't remember which paperwork I have,

but as much as I have, they are included in the

paperwork that was submitted to court.

O. What paperwork was submitted to court?

A. r have no idea, buL if there hrere âûy,

then it's there.

O. Irm asking ygu what records you have of
the investment.

A. Vfhat

O. Vühat records you have of the investment.

A. I don't know.

O. You don't know?
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A. As far as f donrt remember which

records I do have. r have I think my accountant

has or my accounting lady has the money transfer
proof, €t cetera, things like that.

O. The money hras transferred to who?

A. To Eldorado Hil-l-s.

O. Eldorado.

As far as you know, to the extent there
are records, you don't have them, your account,ant has

them; is that what you're saying?

A. Either my attorney has them and/or my

the accountant may have seen some paperwork like that
in the past.

O. But your back in Israel-, have no copies?

A. I don't think sor no.

O. You don'L think so?

A. No, I don't think so.

O. Is it possible you have some records?

A. Everything is possibl-e.

O. Hmm?

A. Everyt,hing is possible theoretically.
O. I accept t,hat.

How often do you travel- to Las Vegas?

A. It's very seldom.

O. Did you travel here when your daughter hras

Envision Legal, Solutions 702-805-4800 scheduling@envision.legal



1n school- ?

A. I traveled when my daughter r^/as in school-

in order to meet you.

O. That one time?

A. Exactly.

O. Where did she go to school-?

A. In New York.

O. And that was the l-ast time you were in Las

Vegas ?

A.

O.

A.

O.

A.

O.

investor?
A.

that there

O.

A.

O.

A.

O.

A.

O.

Correct.
Vfhen did you arrive?
Pardon?

lVhen did you arrive this time?

Yesterday.

Do you consider yourself a sophisticated

Sophisticated enough, I giuess, but I know

are many things that I donrt know.

Are there other j-nvestors in Nanyah

No.

besides you?

No.

It's al-l- your ohrn investment?

Tt I s my o\^rn, yes .

You don't know what an operating agreement
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is?
A. No.

O. Itrs like a constitution for an

organization
A. Oh.

O. the bylaws and so forth.
A. Bylaws of the company. Yeah, I know what

are bylaws

O. That ' s byJ-aws . But there I s al-so what is
known as an operating agreement. Do you have any

recol-lection that there is an operating agreement

A. No.

O. for Nanyah?

A. There may be. There may be not. I don't
know if I was if I legally had to do such

paperwork and it r^ras brought to my attention, then

probably there is. If I was not, then no. Other

than that, I do not recol-lect,.

O. Do you use email?

A. Yes.

O. Do you text?
A. I text, yeah. I text al-so .

O. f may have asked this before, but I want a

cl-ear anshrer. Did you get email-s from Carl-os Huerta?

A. Over the years, I got a few emails from
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Carlos Huerta, I guess.

a. And where are those email-s?

A. Probably, if they existr âs far as they

exist, they woul-d be in the Nanyah Vegas fol-der on my

computer, or if they u/ere just things that I thought

that were not of any relevance, I would probably just,

erase them.

O. But the other ones would be on the

computer?

A. If there are âoy, they would be there.

O. Now, you said you saw him in Israel-; is
that correct?

A. I saw him in Israel when he came to pitch
the deal.

O. That \^ras in 2001?

A. Around.

O. Do you remember when in 2001?

A. I cannot even confirm it r^las 2001 not 2006

or 2008. I don't remember. I also saw him later in
some wedding of our mutual- friend.

a. V[ho j-ntroduced you to Car]-os, Jacob?

A. Jacob Feingold, yes.

MR. LIONEL: Do you know Jacob?

MS. OLïVAS: Yes.

THE WITNESS: And if she knows, she does
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not forget.
BY MR. LIONEL:

O. Where did he do the pitching? Vüas that
your home?

A. Yes, if I remember correctly.
O. Vfho el-se was there at the time?

A. Jacob and him, as far as I remember.

O. Thatrs Jacob Feingold?

A. Correct.

O. And what. did Carlos tel-l you at the time?

Who else what did he tel-l you?

MR. SIMONS: Asked and answered.

THE WfTNESS: Mr. Lionel, this was so many

years ago that if you really want me to be abl-e to
tel-l- you exactly what he told me, it would be

unserious of me to attempt to answer. Basically, he

pitched a deal, a real estate deal, close to Las

Vegas. I remember it was supposed to be logistic
for logistic purposes in the future, a road, highway

would cross it or there would be a junction, et

cetera. This hras when they still thought of Canamex

and El-dorado Hil-l-s as two adjacent plotsr âs far as f
recal-1.

BY MR. LIONEL:

O. Give me the rest of the pitch that you

Envision Legal Solutions 702-80s-4800 scheduling@envision. legal



recal-1.

A. That's what I recall.
O. Nothing el-se?

A. From that tj-me, that I s it. They h/ere

partners in that deal with supposedly a reputable

individual named Sig Rogich, who is a well--known

figure in Las Vegas, with whom they have done

previous deal in which he made a l-ot of money, and

thatrs about it.
O. That was the deal- that Jacob hras in?

A. I think so. I think so¡ yeah.

O. And he made a l-ot of money?

A. Sig Rogich apparently made a through

him.

O.

A.

he did.

O.

A.

that deal-.

Vfhether it
know.

How about, Jacob?

T hope for him that. he did too. I think

Did he tel-l- you he did?

I don't remember if he told me he did on

I know Jacob made money in Las Vegas.

is on that deal- or another deal, I don't

O. lVhat else do you remember about the pitch?
A. Yourve already asked me that, and if I

remembered anything, I would have told you.
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O. Donrt remember anymore?

A. No. This was many years ago.

O. I understand. that.
A. Mr. Lionel, I have people pitching deals

to me several times a week, all year long. You know,

this hras just another one of them. And I did not

make my investment based on specifics of the deal in
terms of analyzing paperwork, in terms of sending

surveyors myself, in terms of seeking externa.l-

external- valuations, êt cetera, €t ceLera. It \^/as

not based on that.
O. Vfhat was it based on?

A. It was based ofl¡ at that time, about 25

years very close relationship with Jacob Feingold and

his entj-re famj-ly, who are very close famj-ly, very

cl-ose friends to me. Of knowing Jacob through bad

times and good times and knowing that Jacob's

partner, by then, for quite a few years was Carl-os

Huerta, whom \^/as very hiqhfy considered by Jacob and

his family as a religiously honest guy with whom they

have done several dea1s, most of which r^rere good,

some of which were not so good. I don't know if they

were not so good then or they became not so good

later. I don I t know to tell- you the dates .

But from my personal, friendly

Envision Legal Solutions 702-805-4800 scheduling@envision. legal



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

B

9

10

11

72

13

I4

15

I6

I7

18

L9

20

27

22

23

24

25

Harlap, Yoav October ll,2017 Page 62

relationship with the Feingold family, T knew that
they had this partner in Las Vegas whom they thought

very highly of and had an extremely good experience

with, and that he Ì^/as considered by them as

religiously honest to the extreme.

From my couple of meetings with him, I got

the same the same impression.

O. Vfith a couple meetings?

A. Yes.

O. How many?

A. A couple .

O. All at your home?

A. No. I told you¡ I met him also in the

wedding of the son of Jacob Feingold. I met him at
.facob Feingold's 60th birthday, to the best of my

recollection. Perhaps another once or twice there.
And I met him when I came to meet you.

O. But only one time was it a pitch?
A. Yeah.

O. Did he talk about Canamex, too, ãL that
pitch?

A. As far as I remember, yes.

O. Vfhat did he tell you?

A. There was an adjacent property to a

property that \^/as the Eldorado Hil-l-s, which they by
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then already ej-ther bought or h/ere in the process of
buyíng, and obviously they needed more investors in
order to try and add this other parcel, which l-ater

on hras not possible, and so they suggested that I
woul-d join the Eldorado Hills investment, which I
did.

O. Did you tell- them how much you were going

to put in?

A. At some point I tol-d them.

O. At the time of the pitch or another time?

A. I don't remember. I think probably

probably, knowing myself, probably not. But maybe

there Ì^/as a minimum. Maybe they gave me expectations

or something or maybe I gave them the understanding

that it is within reason, you know, within reasonable

lj-mits . I don' t know. We I re talking years back.

O. As part of that pitch, did Mr. Carl-os give

you any documents

A. I remember that I saü/ some maps, but I
don't remember if he gave them to me or he just
showed them to me.

O. Thatrs the extent of what you saw?

A. Yeah.

O. And when you decided to invest, did you

tell Carlos you were going to tell me what
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